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Investment Objective

Baronsmead VCT 2 1s a tax efficient listed company which
aims to achieve long-term investment returns for private
investors, including tax-free dividends.

Investment policy

® To mvest primarily 1in a diverse portfoho of UK
growth businesses, whether unquoted or traded on
AIM

#® [nvestments are made selectively across a range of
sectors 1n companies that have the potential to
grow and enhance their value

Further details on the investment policy and risk
management are contained in the Directors’ Report on
pages 17 and 18

Dividend policy

The Beard of Baronsmead VCT 2 aims to sustain a
mimmum annual dividend level at an average of 5 5p
per Ordinary Share, mindful of the need to maintain net
asset value The ability to meet these twin objectives
depends significantly on the level and timing of
profitable realisations and cannot be guaranteed There
will be vanations 1n the amounts of dividends paid year
on year

Since launch, the average annual tax-free dividend paid
to Shareholders has been 6 4p per share (equivalent to a
pre-tax return of 9 5p per Ordinary Share for a higher
rate tax payer) For 5hareholders who claimed tax
reliefs of 20 per cent , 30 per cent or 40 per cent , their
returns would have been higher

www.baronsmeadvct2.co.uk
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Secondary market in the shares of
Baronsmead V(T 2

Shares can be hought and sold using a stockbroker, just
like shares 1n any other Iisted company albeit market
liquuidity 15 hmited Qualifying purchasers individuals
over the age of 18 and UK resident for tax purposes)
can receive VCT dividends (including capital
distributions of realised gains on investments) that are
not subject to mcome tax, and capital gains tax 1s not
payable on disposal of the VCT shares

There 13 no mimmum time for which VCT shares bought
in the secondary market need to be held, and they can be
sold 1n the normal way The UK tax treatment of VCTs 1s
on a first in first out basis and therefore tax advice
should be obtained before shareholders dispose of their
shares and also if they deferred Capital Gains Tax 1in
respect of new shares acquired prior to 6 Apnl 2004

if you have seld or otherwise transferred all of your ordinary shares in Baronsmead VCT 2 plc, please forward this document and the accompanying
form of proxy as soon as possible to the purchaser or transferee, or to the stockbroker, bank or other agent threugh whom the sale or transfer was, or

1s being, effected, for delivery to the purchaser or transferee




Financial Headlines

5.5p
-0.1%
73.40p
79%

84%

Drvidends for the vear total 5 5p per share tax free, including
the proposed final dividend of 3 Op per share payable on
30 December 2009

NAYV per share for the year to 30 September 2009 decreased by
0 1% before payment of dividends This 15 a creditable
performance mn a turbulent year for the UK’s economy and the
financial markets

Cumulative tax free dividends total 73 40p per share for
founder shareholders since 1998, equivalent to an annual
average tax free dividend of 6 4p per share For higher rate tax
payers this equates to 9 5p

Share Price total return since launch 1n 1998, compared to the
increase 1n the FTSE All-Share return of 35% over the same
period When taking the VCT tax rehiefs into account, the positive
differential 1s hugher still

NAYV total return since launch 1in 1998, representing an
annualised total return of 5 4% (on orgnal subscription at
launch) and 6 8% after allowing for mitial mcome tax rehef of
20%




Summary Since Launch

Baronsmead VCT 2 plc

Net asset value total return and share price total return since launch against the FTSE All share Index total return

Performance Summary to 30 September 2009

since launch
Total return* 1year b 5 year & 10 Year % (2 April 1998) %
Net asset valuet (012) 2812 70 49 83 81
Share pricet (353) 2503 5786 7917
FTSE All-share 10 80 3838 28 49 34 96
* Source 1SIS EP LLP and AIC
t These returns for Baronsmead V(T2 1ignore up front tax reliefs and the impact of recening dridends tax free
Performance Record
Ordinary Share
FTSE Combined
Total Share Net asset All-Share total
net Net asset price value total expense
assets value (mid) total return® return rauot
Year ended Em p p % % kA
31/03/1999 950 95 65 850 104 44 105 06 290
31/03/2000 3100 119 59 1250 134 62 115 45 3 40
31/03/2001 45 00 112 30 1250 130 66 103 02 310
31/03/2002 4120 100 54 925 120 15 99 76 270
31/03/2003 36 70 89 65 goo 115 49 70 02 270
31/03/2004 4110 100 63 900 141 80 91 72 270
31/03/200% 69 60 116 92 100 5 168 70 105 99 270
31/03/2006 69 60 114 62 1005 190 51 135 69 290
30/09/2007 68 70 11219 101 0 209 62 154 89 300
30/09/2008 54 80 91 68 84% 184 02 121 80 2 85
30/09/2009 6122 89 06 775 183 81 134 96 266

* Source ISIS EP LLP
t As a percentage of average total shareholders funds {excluding performance fees)




Summary Since Launch

Dividends Paid Since Launch

Average

Revenue Capual Total annual Cumulative tetal annual

dividend dividend dividend dividends dividend

Year ended p P p p p
é months to 30/09/1998 100 000 100 100 050
30/09/1999 3 80 000 3 80 480 320
30/09/2000 3 60 ¢ 00 3 60 8 40 3136
30/09/2001 350 0 00 3 50 11 90 3 40
30/09/2002 250 000 250 14 40 320
30/09/2003 170 10 20 11 90 26 30 478
20/09/2004 140 350 490 3120 480
30/09/2005 250 770 10 20 41 40 552
30/09/ 2006 1 80 9 20 11 00 52 40 616
30/09/2007 210 6 40 8 50 60 90 641
30/00/2008 280 4120 7 00 67 90 647
30/09/2009 070 480 5 50% 73 40 6 38

*Includes proposed final dividend of 3 0p

Cash Returned to Shareholders

The table below shows the cash returned to shareholders dependent on therr subscription cost, including thesr income tax reclaimed on

subscription

Net Cumulative Gross

Subscription Income tax cash dividends Net annual equivalent
price reclaim invesied paid/proposed yietd* yieldt

Year subscribed p p p p % %
1998 {Apnl) - Grdinary 100 200 800 734 8o 19
1999 (May) - Qrdinary 102 204 816 689 g2 121
2000 (February) - Ordinary 137 274 109 6 667 62 92
2000 (March) - Ordinary 130 260 104 0 667 67 99
2004 (October) - € 100 400 600 252 84 124

C share dividend calculated using conversion ratio of o 9657

*Net annuat yield represents the cumulauve dividends pad expressed as a percentage of the net cash invested

tThe gross equivalent yield had the dividends been subject to higher rate tax (currently 32 5 per cent on dividend income)

The table above excludes returns for shareholders whe subscribed in the joint Gffer with Baronsmead VCT plc as these returns are not yetr meaningfut



Chairman’s Statement

The year to 30 September 2009 has been a year of two halves The value of the

unquoted portfolio has remained broadly steady However, even without

significant trading problems at investees, the market value of the AIM portfolio

fell sharply in the first half of the year then the decline was almost exactly

reversed in the second half In a year of such extreme volatiity 1n finanaal

markets 1t 1s pleasing to report that the end result s of Iittle change to NAV per

share which does demonstrate the benefits of good diversity across the portfolio

Clive Parritt Chairman

INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE

Results to 30 September 2009

In the twelve months to 30 September 2009, the Net Asset
Value (NAV) per share decreased by 0 12p from 91 68p to
91 56p before the umpact of dividends The position can be
summarised as follows

NAYV at 1 October 2008 91 68
Movement over the year (0 12)
91 56
Interim dividend paid on 26 June 2009 (250
NAV at 30 September 2009 89 06
Final dividend payable on 30 December 2009 (3 00)
Pro-forma NAV retamned after dividends 86 06
Dividend analysis
From revenue 07
From realised profits retained 48
55

The small change in NAV per share over the year necludes a
15 per cent mncrease 1n the value of the unquoted portfolio
and a fall in the value of the AIM portfoho of 1 3 per cent The
change n the value of our AIM portfolio masks a fall of

25 per cent to 31 March 2009, offset by a gain of 33 per cent
in the second six months The FTSE All-Share Index increased
6 1 per cent over the same 12 month period

At the period end, over 70 per cent of the ordinary capital
raised (net of launch costs} prior to 30 September 2007 was
invested in VCT qualifying investments and the 5 other VCT
qualifying tests had also been met throughout the year

Longer term performance

The Company's Investment Objective emphasises the longer
term performance of the Company This 1s also consistent
with shareholders actual and stated investment horizons The
Board reviews the long term performance of the Company

and the active management style of the Managers

using a number of different metrics, but takes particular
account of total dwvidends paid to shareholders as well as
Share Price and NAV total returns

The proposed final dividend will take the cumulative
drvidends paid (tax free to quahfying shareholders) to founder
shareholders to 73 40p per share This 1s an average annual
dividend throughout the Lfe of the Company of 6 4p per
year

There have been six prospectus fund rarsings by Baronsmead
VCTI 2 All shareholders from these prior offers have to date
achieved positive absolute NAV total returns The ten year
performance up to 30 September 2009 shows Baronsmead
VC1 2 to be one of the top performung generalist VCTs Fuller
comparisons have recently been facihtated by the Association
of Investment Companies (AIC) who pubhsh monthly data
on theiwr website, www theac co uk

The returns to shareholders are sigruficantly enhanced by the
tax benefits available to VCT mvestors At a time of lower and
sometimes negative investment returns, it 1s noteworthy that
the proportional bencfit from these taxation reliefs 1s greater

Portfolio valuation

The valuation guidehnes for unquoted companies have been
revised by the International Private Equity and Venture
Captal Valuation Board to facithtate compliance with
International, US and UK accounting standards The Board
has apphed the new gudehnes having been satisfied that
these provide an improved framework for estimating market
value In valuing the unquoted investments the Board has
available a sigruficant amount of information for companson
purposes including earmings multiples of recent transactions,
P/Es of comparable quoted companies and FTSE sectors, all
sutably adjusted for size, hquidity, gearing, growth
prospects and business mux AIM investments continue to he
valued at nd price

Following the sale of four AIM mnvestments, the transfer of
two small AIM holdings and the write off of another nine



Chairman’s Statement

investments the total portfohio comprises 74 companies

44 per cent of the net asset value of £61 2m was nvested 1n
unguoted companies, 22 per cent in AIM investees and the
balance of 34 per cent remained 1n cash or government
securities The largest two investments 1n Reed & Mackay and
SeriptSwitch represented 4 9 per cent and 4 8 per cent of Net
Asset Value respectively

[ am delighted to say ScriptSwitch, an investment made 1n
May 2007, was subject to a id by UnitedHealth UK that
completed shortly after the year end resulting i a return,
including expected luture payments, approaching four times
cost

Unquoted portfolio

The performance of the unquoted portfolio has been robust
and 1its collective valuation has been sustained This vahdates
the quality of the portfolio and the effectiveness of close
cooperation and active Manager involvement with the

investee companies

On average, the current portfolio of unquoted investments 1s
valued at some 32 per cent higher than ornginal cost

15 companies are valued at a level greater than cost and

6 are valued below cost, with four of these having a provision
agamnst cost of more than 25 per cent

AlM-traded portfolio

The AIM portion of the portfolio has bounced back 33 per
cent since 31 March 2009 almost recovering the loss n the
first s1x months of the financial year In the second half of the
year two of the investee compares were sold outnght
confirmng that acquirers could shll appreciate the good
value that resided 1n these relatively lowly rated situations
This also supports the longer term strategy of taking more
influential stahes in a smaller number of AIM investments,
where a hkely exat strategy to a trade buyer can be envisaged

Collective Investment Vehicle

During the year the Manager set up a collective Investment
vehicle to enable the Baronsmead funds to take advantage of
opportumties expected to arise in UK non-qualifying AlM
and SmallCap companies As an open ended investment
company (OEIC) it will provide a means of earming better
returns than can be achieved on cash while offering hquidity
£525,000 of cash and small shareholdings i two AlM-traded
companics were transferred into the Wood Street Microcap
Investment fund in June 2009 The Board behieves that the
use of this fund will improve shareholder returns while
ensuring that adequate quid funds remain available to
support the unquoted portfolio when necessary or
oppurtune

Prospects for new investment

The market for investing 1n new transactions has heen
somewhat depressed over the last 12 months with overall
M&A volumes down sigrnuficantly although ten follow on
investments were completed during the year under review
The quality of new proposals 15 improving as confidence
begins to return to the market and asset pricing 1s becoming
more advantageous which 1s helping clearer decision-
making Additicnally the Manager has an active programme
of directly approaching prospective investee companies 1n
selected sectors, and this 1s building a strong pipeline of
entrepreneurs who would like to work with the Manager
when timing 1s nght Thus continues to be a sigmificant
investment for the future

The poor stock market conditions m 2008 and in early 2009
were particularly difficult for companies 1n our AIM portfolio
and the flow of quabfying AIM opportunities was limited
These conditions have now improved substantiafly Recent
research recognises the mmportance of AIM as a funding stage
tor venture backed and entrepreneurial companies,
particularly 1n an environment with lower debt availabibity
AIM companies typically have no or low levels of gearing and
we expect improving prospects 1n this part of the portfolio

BOARD CHANGES

Nich Timpson retires from the Board at this AGM after eleven
years He had onginally founded Furniture Holdings, an
earher mnvestee company of I51S from 1985 to 1997 when 1t
was successfully sold As an industnalist, he has given the
Board valuable insights about the working of our
entreprencunally run companies and provided wise counsel
for the benefit of sharehoiders, in part due to hus
understanding as a shareholder 1in Baronsmead VCT 2 We
thank him for his dedicated service

I am delighted to welcorme Howard Goldring to the Board,
which he joined on the 11 November 2009 He has wide
experience of Asset Management and 1s founder chairman of
Delmore Asset Management Previously he was a non-
cxccutive director of Liverpool Victoria Asset Management,
undertahing the role of global strategist

SHAREHOLDER ISSUES
Fund raising

The joint offer with Baronsmead VCT raised net proceeds of
£8 4m for each VCT After the proposed final dividend 15 pard
the cash resources remain at a good level for investing into

the anticipated upswing and yet retain sufficient flexibihity to
mect any requirements for the existing porttolio, buy backs




Chairman’s Statement

and future dividends To enhance the return on cash held, the
Manager has formed the Wood Street Microcap Investment
Fund and some of our iquid resources have been invested n
this OEIC (see above)

Buy backs and market discounts

During the 12 months to 30 September 2009, 0 75 milhon
shares were bought back

The average market price discount to NAV was 10 per cent
over the year which compares favourahly to the rest of the
V(1 sector where discounts to NAV were generally much
higher

VAT reclaim on management fees

Following the successful reclaim of VAT as detailed in my
statement last year total VA1 recovered together with
interest amounted to £1 2m of which £0 5m, including
interest, 15 recognised n this period

Company brokers

The Company's former broker, Teathers, ceased to operate as
a market maker during March 2009 However, several other
firms became market makers dunng that month thereby
mimnusing the impact this could have had on the discount to
NAV at which the Company’s shares were traded Currently
the Company’s shares have three market makers, namely
Matrix Corporate Capital, Winterflood and Singer Capital
Markets Following a review of brokers the Board agreed to
appomnt Matrnx Corporate Capital as the new broker to the
Company from the beginning of August 2009

Finance Act 2009

In the April 2009 Budget there were only minor changes to
the VCT rules and regulations However, the Finance Act
2009 set out the proposed 30 per cent tncome tax rate and
restriction of tax relief on pension contributions The
proposed changes will make tax-free dividends more valuable
in the hands of our shareholders and 1t 1s hkely that VCTs
will become increasingly attractive It 1s important to stress
the need to consult professional advisers regarding any
taxation or penston planmng and personal investment Please
email Michael probin@isisep com 1f you wish to contribute
to these topics and state what 15 important from your
perspective as an nterested investor

Your Board believes 1t will be important to demonstrate the
positive benefit to the UK economy of VCT tax concessions

which encourage investment mn entrepreneunal growth
businesses To support the case for such reliefs we shall seeh
to measure the increased employment and consequent
Increase 1n tax revenue to the Treasury delivered by investee
companies that have henefited from our mnvestment For
example the ten largest investee compames have on average
ncreased the number of employees by over 50 per cent
during the first 3 years following our investment

Dividend

A final drividend of 3 Op will be proposed at the forthcoming
AGM and, 1f approved, will be paid on 30 December 2009 to
shareholders recorded on the register on 27 November 2009
The ex-dividend date 1s 25 November 2009

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

I look forward to meeting as many shareholders as possible at
our twelfth Annual General Meeting on Monday

14 December 2009 to be held at the London Stock Exchange,
10 Paternoster Square near S5t Paul’s Cathedral The AGM will
be followed by presentations from the Manager, an imvestee
company and a light lunch The AGM will start at 11 am and
be preceded by a shareholders workshop

OUTLOOK

Equity markets have rallied 1n recent months anticapating
that the pace of decline 1n the UK economy over the past

12 months may have slowed and perhaps stabithsed While
rematning cautious about the econony the Board and
Manager share the belief that once greater stability has
returned to UK finanaal and industral markets your
Company should be well placed to capitalise on a potentially
more favourable mvestment environment

We are concerned by the proposed European Union
Alternative Investment Fund Managers Directive and its
inpact upon the Company and the Manager and the
additional costs that may beincurred as a result of complying
with 1t It 1s too early to tell how signtficant the impact of
these measures will be to the way your Company functions,
but we are alert to the ssues and will comumnent further on
this Directive as 1ts implications hecome more apparent

Clive Parntt
Chairman

17 November 2009



Manager’'s Review

The priority during the year was working closely with portfolio companies to ensure their stability and to

position them for improvement once we move out of the current downturn This we have achieved but the

extreme market volatility precluded much new investment Selective further investment was made 1 existing

portfolio companies Our investees now have a firmer base from which to grow mto the anticipated upswing

PORTFOLIO REVIEW

The total portfolio comprised 74 investee compantes at the
year end after the write off of mine AlM-traded companies
Cne new tnvestment was made in Clarity Commerce
Selutions, an AlM-traded company The AIM companies
written off had largely been the sulyect of provisions taken in
prior years and so the decrease 1n value this year amounted to
£0 3m, approximately 0 5p NAV per share Further
mvestments were made in existing investees amounting to
£1 7m across four unquoted and six AIM-traded investees
A shareholding in Inverness Medical, a NYSE listed company,
was taken 1n exchange for selling our holding 1 Concateno
Cash proceeds from all realisations totalled £2 4m All new
mvestment and the exits are scheduled on page 9 of the
annual report

Portfolio companies are reviewed quarterly in terms of their
financial health and in the last two quarters, those exhibnting
steady or better trading progress have steadied to 72% In part
this has come from focusing on robust business models
where growth strategies are less dependent on overall

economic growth and more on the competitive advantage in
delvering supertor value to their end customers

ScriptSwiltch 1s a good example of the above, where the
demand driver for its umque prescribing software 1s reducing
cost within Primary Care Trusts’ drug budgets More than
115 NHS Primary Care Organisations have benefited from
their prescribing decision support resulting in significant
savings heing made The CEO, Mike Washburn, became the
BVCA "Venture Capital backed CEO of the year’ i1 October
2009 As described in the Chairman’s Statement ScriptSwitch
was subject to a nd that completed shortly after the year end

Unquoted portfolio management

ScnptSwitch and three other case studies of unquoted
companies across a number of different marhet sectors
within the portfolio are set out on pages 14 and 15 These are
the same 4 compantes that were protiled last year and the
mntention this year has been to show how the Manager has
worked with the management tcams te prepare each business




Manager’s Review

for the more difficult trading conditions that they would
experience

For example, the financial structures adopted 1n the unquoted
portfolio have been designed to be prudent wherever possible
with relatively low levels of external debt There are several
ways of measuring borrowings but the most common relates
to the level of net borrowings divided by annual operating
profits defined as EBITDA - earmings before interest, tax,
depreciation and amortisation At an average ratio of

1 7 tumes across the unquoted portfoho, the level of debt
within the portfolio as a whole 1s relatively low and
considerably less than those typically used in larger private
equity transactions

During the year the Manager recruited the services of Anna
Fhighton, an expenienced HR professional Anna’s newly
established role 1s to enhance the impact that ISIS can have on
its investees 10 the important areas of strategic HR, talent
management and sentor team development Anna previously
worked n a semor HR role at Accenture hefore working 1n
her own HR consultancy She started working with 1515 as a
consultant from 2007

The Manager 15 also actively 1mnvolved 1n assisting investee
compantes mawmntain tight control of overheads, focusing on
effictent workang capital management and ensuring early
communication with each investee company’s banks to help
manage rish and mimmuise 1ssues  Presentations by investee
companies at each AGM have illustrated the close relationship
between the executive management of unquoted companies
and the Manager

AIM investment strategy

The strategy for investing in AIM companies 1s to use private
cquity disciphines where possible and focus on holdings
where the Manager can be an influential shareholder The tail
of smaller nvestments has also been shortened with a
number of write offs and sales The two AIM holdings that
were hought out durng the year realised an 1ncrease in value
of £0 2m since 30 September 2008 This demonstrates that
further value uplifts may be possible on AIM 1nvestees
through corporate activaty

OUTLOOK

The last year has been a time for entrepreneurtal companies
to be focused on running a bight operation and ensuring they
can control their destiny despite the difficulties of the banking
market This has largely been achieved across the portfolio
In an improving economic climate the objective of these
companies 15 to grow both market share and profits It will be
the continued 1nnovation and drive of these companies, aded
hy the support of the Manager who 1s an experienced and
active 1nvestor that will create value for the shareholders 1n
Baronsmead VCT 2

SIS EP LLP
Investment Managers
17 November 2009




Table of Investments and Realisations

New investments in the year to 30 September 2009

Investment cost

Number Compary Location Sector Actvity {E’000)
NYSE-traded investments
new
1 Inverness Medical Inct USA Healthcare & Education Developer of health management programmes 180
Total NYSE-traded investments 180
AlM-traded investments
new
1 Clanty Commerce Solutions plc Londen IT & Media Consumer transaction software 50
foflow on
1 Brulines Holdings plc Stockton on-tees Business Services Pub management systems 298
2 Electnc Word plc Londen IT & Media Speaalist informatien business servicing the sport 200
and education sectors
3 ffasthll plc Sevenoaks IT & Media Trading platform software provider 261
4 IDOX plc Londorn IT & Media Public sector software and services [RL:]
3 Kiotech International plc Surrey Healthcare & Education Arimal feed additives 75
6 WIN plc High Wycombe IT & Media Text messaging services 150
Total AIM-traded investments 1,152
Unquoted investments
follow on
1 Kafevend Holdings Ltd Crawley Consumer Markets vending services 6
2 Nexus Vehicle Holdings Ltd Leeds Business Services Vehicle rental broker 499
3 0ccam DM Ltd Bath IT & Media Integrated data services 52
4 Xention Discovery Cambndge Healtheare & Education Developer of 1on channel modulating drugs 38
Total Unquoted investments 595
Total Investments in the period 1,927
tPaper consideration frem sale of Concateno plc
Realisations in the year to 30 September 2009 Value at  Realised
First 30 September  profit/(loss) Overall
mvestment 2008 this period Multiple
Number Company date f'o00 f coo return*
AlIM-traded realisations
1 Begbies Traynar Group plc Part sale Sep 0q 129 - 41
2 Claimar Care Group plc Trade sate Jan o6 73 198 0%
3 Concatene plc Trade sale oct o6 547 (22) 13
4 Craneware plc Part sate Sep 07 192 (7) 17
5 Electric Ward plc Transferred 10 Wood Street Microcap
Investment Fund Mar o8 n 1 07
[ Independent Media Transferred 1o Wood Street Microcap
Distribution plc Investment Fund Mar o8 4 (1) 09
7 MBL Group plc Market sale jan o3 158 224 0g
8 Universe Group ple Market sale May 03 27 (6} 01
1,151 387
Written off
1 Apmian Technology plc Dec o5 157 (157) -
2 Conder Environmental plc Nov 0o - - -
3 EBTM plc May 07 77 Oom -
4 Fishworks plc Jun as 35 (35) -
5 IPT Holdings pic Nov 04 18 (18} -
6 Landround plc Aug 97 6 (16) -
7 Loanmakers (Holdings) plc June o5 - - -
8 Micap plc Jul 03 - - -
5 Top Ten Holdings plc 0ct 03 " (1) -
314 (314)
Total AIM-traded realisations 1,465 73
Unquoted realisations
1 Green Issues wnitten off Dec o5 261 (261) -
2z ScriptSwitch Loan note redemption May 07 783 - 13
Total Unquoted reallsations 1,044 (261)
Total Realisations 2,509 (188)

*Includes interest/dividends received loan nole redemapuions and partial realisations agcounted for in pner penods
Deferred proceeds were received for Kidsunhmited €1 006 and Language Lne £33 ooo




Investment Portfolio

Investment Classification at 30 September 2009

% of equity
held by % of equity Total
Book cost Valuation % of net Baronsmead held by all valuation
Company Nature of business f ooo £ cao assets V(T 2 plc Funds* t ooo*
Unguoted
Reed & Mackay Business Services 1211 2,984 483 93 392 11938
Scriptswitch Healthcare & Education 384 2959 483 72 325 11,834
Nexus Vehicle Holdings Lid Business Services 1 868 2428 413 126 574 10114
Carnell Contractors Business Services t 499 2 468 403 83 375 6 872
CableCom Metworking Holdings Ltd T & Media 1,381 1,846 EL 106 480 7384
Quantix Lmited IT & Media 1194 1 801 294 14 480 7,204
Independent Living Services Heatthcare & Educanion 8m 1568 256 144 405 6272
Fisher Qutdoor Leisure Holdings Led Consumer Markets 1,423 1,433 234 105 440 5733
Kafevend Holdings Lid Consumer Markets ¥ 252 1346 220 158 465 5,385
Crew Clothing Company Ltd Consumer Markets 933 1286 210 59 50 5,144
CSC (World) Limited IT & Media 1 606 1 250 204 88 400 4999
MLS IT & Media ! 1132 185 53 225 4521
Credit Solutions Financial Services 1032 1126 193 86 350 4,366
Playforce Holdings Limited Business Services 1033 1,096 179 97 440 4 385
Aclive Assistance Healthcare & Education 679 1044 T 74 335 4175
Empire World Trade Limited Business Services v 297 765 1125 VR 300 3059
TVC Group Limited IT & Media ¥ 133 93 048 64 435 1173
Occam DM Lid IT & Media 517 121 010 58 552 1,189
Kidsunlimited Group Ltd Business Services 113 133 018 Qo 0o 1 400
Xention Discovery Healthcare & Educanon 316 63 010 12 546 310
Total ungugted 20,553 27,222 A6
AlM
Advanced Computer Software plc T & Media 525 158 19 o9 50 6,618
IDOX plc IT & Media 1,038 1081 14 32 96 3231
Murgitroyd Group plc Business Services 319 i 11 31 612 1,423
Begbies Traynar Group pic Financial Services 2 625 10 06 25 2 450
Brulines Holdings plc Business Semvices 646 595 10 19 97 3,008
staffline Reccuitment Group ple Business Services 249 99 08 45 90 997
Frasthll plg IT & Media 477 475 08 18 108 2789
vero Software plc IT & Media 500 350 0% 62 143 891
Jelf Group plc Financial Services 551 381 0é 13 52 1,553
Driver Geoup plc Business Semvices 438 372 06 23 104 1707
Kiotech International plc Healthcare & Education 275 341 06 212 158 2333
Proactis Holdings plc IT & Media 400 326 05 30 ¥5 1 1628
Mount Engineenng pic Business Services 385 319 05 23 134 1823
WIN plc IT & Media a13 315 05 44 197 1401
Research Now plc Business Services 263 306 05 05 23 1488
Essentially Group lid Business Services 495 283 05 19 121 1179
InterQuest Croup plc Business Semvices 310 270 04 18 74 1080
15 Pharma plc Healthcare & Education 246 268 04 10 59 1530
Stagecoach Theatre Ans plc Consumer Markets 419 248 04 45 91 496
Tasty pkc Consumer Markets 356 226 04 17 130 1,727




Investment

Portfolio

% of equrty
hetd by % of equity Total
Book cost Valuation % of net  Baronsmead held by all valuation
Company Nature of business £ oco £ coo assels VT 2 pic Funds* { ooo*
AlM (continued)
Electric Word pl¢ IT & Media 200 207 03 24 194 1666
Huveaux plc IT & Media 666 201 03 17 a4 521
Adventis Group pic IT & Media 8 197 03 23 82 202
Cohon plc Business Services 179 189 a3 o3 14 93¢
Craneware plc IT & Media N 180 LE] 02 1M 927
Praesepe plc Consumer Markets 525 179 03 1 62 1023
Quadnetics Group ptc Business Services 296 176 03 06 22 563
Colliers CRE plc Financial Services 470 158 03 09 26 266
Plasucs Capital ple Business Services 472 151 az 18 100 864
Autoctenz Holdings plc Business Services 400 134 02 31 123 538
Prologic plc IT & Media 310 132 02 a1 150 48c
EG Solutions ple IT & Med:a 375 10 0z 33 t42 509
Sanderson Group plc IT & Media 387 102 0z 18 69 390
Tangent Cemmunicauons plc Business Services 180 ) o1 o8 a7 515
Character Group pic Consumer Markets 143 86 o1 04 26 <98
STM Group plc Financial Servces 140 72 o1 [ 38 504
Relax Group plc Consumer Markets 263 70 01 19 109 400
Bramnjuicer Group plc IT & Media 50 &5 o1 o4 18 324
Mission Marketing Group (The} plc IT & Media 247 60 a1 .} 14 159
Clanty Commerce Splutigns plc IT & Media 50 50 a1 o4 78 1000
RTC Group plc Business Services 355 37 01 42 85 76
Real Good Food Company (The) plc Consumer Markets 620 N a1 07 23 100
AorTech Internauonal plc Healthcare & Education 285 28 0o 1) oc 51
Zoo Migial Group plc IT & Media 438 12 00 03 o 45
Cobra Biomanufacturing plc Healtheare & Education 210 7 0¢ o6 o6 7
MKM Group plc Business Services 284 6 oo 07 25 23
Higham Systems Senvices Group plc Business Services 197 3 []] 03 10 12
INVU plc IT & Media 15 3 [J] 01 12 65
Payzone plc Consumer Markets 109 2 [+]+ [+]+} ot 7
Silverdell plc Energy & Envirenmental 194 2 oo 00 00 7
Opumisa plc IT & Media 298 0 oo 15 g8 -
Total AIM 17,086 11,930 195
Listed
vectura Group plc Healthcare & Education 578 1019 17 04 13 3 685
Total listed 578 1,019 17
PLUS
Chemistty Commumicavens Group plc Business Services 500 109 02 31 63 217
Total PLUS 500 109 02
New York Stock Exchange
Inverness Medical Inc Healthcare & Education 180 212 03 00 01 1143
Total New York Stock Exchange 180 212 03
Interest bearing securities
UK Treasury 5 75% 07/12/09 1568 1542 25
UK T 8ill 09/11/09 3749 3,749 61
Uk T 8ill 12/10/09 4499 4499 73
UK T Bl 26/10/09 1922 1722 28
BlackRock Cash Market QEIC 7 000 7 0oC N4
Total interest bearing securities 18,538 18,512 301
Collective Investment Vehicles
Wood Street Microcap Investment fund 525 525 09
Total Collective Investment Vehicles 525 525 09
Total investments 57,960 39,529 9713
Net current assets 1,686 27
Net assets 61,215 1000
*Alt funds managed by the same investment manager 18IS EP LLP including Baronsmead VCT 2
AlIM, Listed and Plus Portfolio Concentration Analysis
Book cosl Valuatien % of Quoted
Investment ranking by valuation £ coo £ 000 portfolig
Tep Ten 515 6934 523
M -20 3,643 3048 230
23 - 30 3223 1924 175
30 ¢+ 6 354 1364 w02
Total 18,345 13,270 1000




Ten Largest Investments

The top ten investments by current value at 30 September 2009 illustrate the diversity and size of investee companies within the pertfolhio This
financial information 1s taken from pubhcly available information, which has been audited by the auditors of the investee companics

This analysis now details figures for the top ten investments at the holding company level rather than at the trading entity level We believe this
gves an improved presentation and although a diffcrent basis to previous annual reports the prior year comparison figures are internally

consistent
1 REED & MACKAY HOLDINGS LIMITED London High quality business travel
All 1SIS EP LLP managed funds Year ended 31 March 2008 2007
First Investment November 2005 ; £ mullzon £ mullion
Tatal Cost £4 870 000 Sales . 134 12 g
Total equsty held 39 20% EBITA 32 17
Profit before tax 11 07
Net Assets 15 10
Baronsmead YCT 2 only
Cost L1211 000 No of kmployees 195 155 www reedmac com
Valuation £2 984 000 (Source Reed & Madckay Holdings Limited Report and Fananas Statements 2008}
Valuation basis Eurnungs Multiple Reed & Mackay provides specralist busingsa travel management seriices to professional services firne and
% of equity held 931% corporates 1t s gh touch servece has bren developed to deln er the complex travel requirements demanced by

high perfornung clients fronr the legal, financtal, insar ince ind caterd atnment sectors

2 SCRIPTSWITCH HOLDINGS LIMITED Coventry Prescription software

AILISKS EP LLP managed funds Year ended 30 June 2008 2007
£ million £ mullion

hirst Imvestment May 2007
Total Cost £1 539 000
Total equity held 32 80% Net (Liabilities)/Assets 0 4) 04

(dource Scriptswitch Limited auditud Annual Report and Accounts 2008)

Baronsmead VCT 2 anly
Note Due to the s1zu of the husiness scriptdbwiteh s not required to 0 itch
Cost £383 000 fale a full set of wlounts www scriptswitch com

Valuaty 2950 3
a uanoen £1 959 004 ScrgptSwitch provides innov atn e proseribing deciston support softw are to GPsy The softw are enables the GF to

Valuation basis Recent Otter muehe better nedictnes management deersions at the pont of prescniption enabling butter chinical nsk
“s of equity heid 7 15% management and the capability to lower total drug expenditure
AK ¥ ) Ig €X]
3 NEXUS VEHICLE HOLDINGS LIMITED Lceds Vehicle rental broker
Al ISIS EP LLP managed funds Year ended 31 March 2008*
First Investment February 2008 1 £ nuthon
Total Cost £7 500 000 Sales 69
Total equity hodd 57 42% EBITA 04
Lass before tax (0 3)
Net Assels 02
Barensmead VCT 2 only
Cost £1 868 000 No of Employees 22 www nexusrental co uk
Vahation £2 528 000 “Accounts tor 9 month peniod  (Source  Nexus Velile Hoklings Limited  Firanaal Statements 2008)
Valuation bas<is Earnimgs Multiple
5 Nexos o a4 broker of car and van rentl providing a comprehenst e procurement ~er e for corpor ity users
% of equity huld 12 6% N broker of ! tal providing pre: / t K ¢
which delvvers aceess to a huge rangy of rental suppliers and vohucle types from a single ordening pornt Thy
systerm L wteemt b tseed aned offers extonsine capablities at the s time as cost effective supply
4 CARNELL SUPPORT SERVICES LIMITED Penkridge Providing support to the highways sector
All IS1S EP LLP managed funds Year ended 30 September 2008
First Investment March 2008 £ million
Total Cost L6 000 0K Sales 138
Total equaty hild 47 50% EBr['“.‘\ 17
Profit betore thix 03
Net Assets 07
Bargnsmead VCT 2 only
Cost 11499 000 No ot Employees 113 www carnellcontractoss com
valuation £2 468 000 (Source Carnell support Services Linuted Audited Annual Report
valuation basis Earnungs Multiple and Accounts 2008)
% of equity huld 8 15% Carnell prow udes spuotalist mairitenance and support survices to the Highw s Agency strategic road netsvork.

It provides serv s across @ broad speetrune including infrastructur, technology, dramge and nater
mitnagenunt

5 CABLECOM NETWORKING HOLDINGS LIMITED Clevedon Internet access solutions

All ISIS EP LLP managed funds Year ended 30 June 2008 2007
First Investment May 2007 L millkon L miihon
Total Cost L5 600,000 Sales 61 22
Total Lquity held 48 00% ERITA 13 0s
Loss betore tax {0 1} {0 1)
Baronsmead VCT 2 only Net Assets 14 16
Cost £1 381 000 No of Employces 10 36
v aluation L1 B8 000 Acwounts tor § month peniod WWWw cablecomnetworking o uk
valuation basts Earmngs Muttiple {Source Cablaom Networkang Holdings Lumited Audited Annual Report and Accounts 2008)
% af equity held 10 56% Cablecom s prinneny business is to delnvor and manage wired and wirdless broadband commumie sbin senices

to fugh donsity accommodiation such as stucdent halls of redemccs: These managed sery ices are proided
through long term contracts In addition the business trstalls networked communie thion sy sfems for
corpor gty dustomirs

"EBITA represents carmings hefore interest tax and amortisation
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QUANTIX Nottingham

{a trading name of “ewinceo 635 Limited)

AlLISIS EP LLP managed tunds

First Investment
Total Cost

Total equity held

Baronsmead VCT 2 only

Cost

Valuation
Valuation basis
% of equity hdld

March 2007
L4 8O0 000
48 00%

£1 194 000
L1,801 000
Lerniings Multiple
11 40%

[LS GROUP LIMITED Alloa

AW {SIS EP LLP managed funds

First Investment
Total Cost

Total equity held

Baronsmead VCT 2 only

Cost

Valuation
Valuation basis
% of equity held

Septumtber 2005
£1,235 000
60 45%

LEAQ1 000

L1 568000
Larngs Multiph
14 6%

Outsourced database mawmntenance

Year ended 30 Septernber 2008 2007
L milhon £ million
Sales 83 34
EBI LA 12 04
Loss hetore tax (0 3) [ )]
Net Asscts 07 10
No of bmployees 42 33 www quantix-uk com

(Source Newinueo 635 Limmted audited Annual Rueport and Accounts 2008)
(e antix operates in the growng field of IT outsourged scrviees TEprovides romote marntenance and support to

corporittes that use large databaves, saving thenr the cost of emploving speaalint expertiac 1n house It also
provides consultancy and product sales for database and IT securthy applications

Acute domucthary care

Year endud 3¢ Septermber 2008 2007
£ mlhon £ nmilhon
Sales i2 7 110
EBITA 18 17
Profit before tax 06 06
Net Assets o9 a9
No of kmployees 838 646 www ilsscotland com

(Source 1Ly Group Limited  Directors Report and inanaal Statements X008)

ILS 15 one of the leading prov iders of acute domncilian care in scotland  ILS traumed carers provide serces in
the home for care users on buhalf of 1 Local Authortty (LA) antontrs As nell as growing from winning new
contracts o5 LA s outsotree more work, ISIS It supported four acquisittons to date

FISHER OUTDOOR LEISURE HOLDINGS LIMITED St Albans  Supplying the cycling industry

All 1515 EP LLP managed tunds

hirst Imvestment

Total Cost

Total equity held

Baronsmead VT 2 only

Cost

‘atuation

* aluation ba<is
% of equity huid

KAFEVEND GROUP LIMITED
All 1515 €P LLP managed funds

hirst Investment

lotal Cost

Total equity held

Baronsmead ¥CT 2 only

Cost

Valuation
Valuation basis
% of equity held

CREW CLOTHING HOLDINGS LIMITED London

All 1S)S EP LLP managed funds

First tnsestmant

Total Cost

Total equity held

Bargnsmead VCT 1 only

Cost

Valuation
Valuahon hasts
% of equity held

June 2006
45 700 000
+4 00%

L1423 000

£1 433 000
Larnungs Multiple
10 15%

October 2005
£9 024 000
66 0%

L1 252000

L1 6 000
Larnimgs Muthiple
15 79%

Novemnber 2006
L3750 6N
25 (0%

L334 000

L1286 (R
Earnings Multiple
5 94%

Crawley

Year ended 30 September 2008 2007

L mlhon £ milhon
Sales 19 3 115
EBITA 21 12
Profit before tax 035 a2
Net Assets 11 a3

No of kmployees 83 B84 www fisheroutdoor co uk

(5ourie hisher Quidoor Lasure Holdings Limited  Direvtors Report and Finaneial St itements 20081
Frshor ts ot ey supplier of buyeh parts and dccessortes to chatns, on-lime ret tlers and indepencunt shops It

hasexclusie rlghta te promoet. and distebute some of the key mternational branded products within the UK
daned tiso has soie on e brmdedd progducts

SME dninks vending
Year ended 31 March 2008 2007
£ milhon £ milhon
Sales 16 1 14 4
LBIiA 11 a6
Profit before tax 12 o7
Net Assets 27 19
No ot kmployecs 107 103 www kafevending co uk

(Source  katevend Group Lunited audited Annual Ruport ind Accounts 2008}
Kafevend provides a compreharsive hot diinbs undruf serbiee aeross the UK Tt supplies corpor ate customurs

with o range of vending machines typecally on rental or lease terms, and then supplics consumiables and
machine servicing

Multi-channel clothing retailer

Year creled 31 March 2008 2007
£ million £ mulhon
Sales 220 159
EBITA 14 12
Profit hetore tax (o] 06
Net Assets 23 18
No of Fmployees 209 155 www crewclothing co uk

dource Lrow Clothung Holdings Limnted  audited Annunl Report and bawnaal stitements 20081

Cren 1s o Bratish brand of men « and somen s casaal uprmarket dothuing and accessories. All products are
designed tn-house and gts ranga i sold through 1ty own estate of ret ul vutlcts and 1o through its own
website ared vt b artous wholesale accounts




HOW ISIS CREATES AND REALISES VALUE FOR THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
BARONSMEAD VCT 2 PLC

Baronsmead VCT 2 plc mnvests in a diverse portfolio of UK growth businesses run by entrepreneurial managers, whether
unquoted or traded on AIM, It 1s the growth aspirations of these compantes and theur track record that make them above
average and out of the ordinary

The following four examples show how the Manager’s approach can lead to growth in the investment value over ime The
ISI5 selection criteria include

Ability to become a market leader 1n therr chosen miche

Management teams who can deliver profitable and sustamned growth

Company can become an attractive asset appealing to a wade range of ndders at the time of sale
1SIS seehs selective opportumnities from its four UK offices through a combination of corporate finance advisers and direct
approaches to attractive targets

For the unquoted investments the 1515 team are active Board participants ensuring that strategy 1s clear, the business plan
well thought through and the management resources are in place to deliver profitable growth The intention s to buld on
the mital platform and grow the business so that it can become an attractive target able to be either sold or floated in the
medium term

The four investments described in this sechion were introduced to shareholders m last years report This year we focus on
the challenges faced by these portiolo compantes during the recession and how, with the support of the Manager, they

have emerged ready to take advantage of opportunities as the economy improves

REED & MACKAY

Reed and Mackay 1s a leading strategic business travel
management business bascd 1 the City Utiising 1-QQ, 1ts m
house developed bespoke technology and the expertise of
teams of Travel Consultants the business deals with
professional  services firms providing them wath
comprehensive corporale wide business travel services

Baronsmead mnvested 1n 2005 as part of a replacement
captal transaction and has been key to the double digit
earnings growth that has been achieved each year since the
investment Critical to that growth has been the broadening
and strengthening of the senior management team and the
additional investment 1 technology to support the Travel
Consultants to deliver outstanding service to the travellers

Reed and Mackay has worked even harder than normal
during the recussion to support its customers looking for
lower cost travel solutions It 1s clear that the years of
nvestment in 1-Q combned with the ¢xtensive knowledge
of the Consultants has enabled the business to deliver
demonstrable value to its clients which has ensured that
many more professional services firms have signed up
with Reed and Mackay to gain access to its umque services,
and so notwithstanding any reduction 1n the volume of
travel undertaken by indmaidual clhients, the business has
continued to grow in a difficult market

www reedmac com

“’Confidence to Grow"’

PLAYFORCE

Playforce offers a wide range of creative play equipment
from ‘wobble walkways’, timber trails, and climbing walls,
to outdoor classrooms and shelters All are designed to inspire
children to have fun and stimulate their imagination To date
the business has been commussioned to design and install in
excess of 2,000 school playgrounds for local authories,
pansh councils and park authorities across the UK

When Baronsmead invested 1n Playforce m 2008 it
recognised that the busmess 1s at the forefront of
innovatton in a sector which has enjoyed increasing focus
over revent years Qutdoor play and learning activities are
seen as key to children’s development and help counter
concerns over obesity and behaviour underlined by the
government’s ncreased commutment to  playground
provision outhned in the Children’s Plan, announced n
December 2007

The demand created by Education policy and ambition of
schools and PTAs has resulted in some msulation for
Playforce from recessionary pressures felt elsewhere i the
economy over the last year This has meant that the business
has continued to grow, umprove its operating platiorm,
strengthen the management team and 1nvest in new product
development meaning 1t will enter 2010 as a stronger
business locking to capitahse on the opportunittes that le

head
anea www playforce co uk

“Relationship and Opportumty””



Creating Shareholder Value

INDEPENDENT LIVING SERVICES

[ndependent Living Services ‘ILS’ 15 the leading independent
prowvider of ‘care at home' services 1n Scotland Services are
developed to support both older and younger people hiving
in the community with physical or learning disabulities
hese services are delivered through partnershup with lecal
and health authorities, voluntary organtzations or dircetly
with the indwvidual service user

Raronsmead invested 1n 2005, attracted by the dynamics of
the ‘care at home” market 1n Scotland, where there were
continuing moves to mvolve the private sector n the
provision of services and the market supply was
fragmented Baronsmead has subsequently supported
four acquisitions resulting 1n a broader geographic
footprint across Scotland  with  the busingss now
providing services across eighteen local authorties

ILS provides cost efficient services to vulnerable members
of soclety and as such has not suffered as a result of the
recession In fact the business has continued to secure new
contracts and enjoyed double digit growth during the year
to September 2009

www 1lsscotland com

“Buy and Build’”’

SCRIPTSWITCH

ScriptSwitch  provides nnovative prescribing  decision
support software to healthiare orgamsations throughout
the UK ScriptSwitch 1s the leading provider of software
designed to support GPs with patient safety information,
drug switch recommendations and dosage optinusation
information at the point at which they are prescribing Its
success mn boosting patient safety as well as driving cost
savings on prescribed drugs has meant that it 1s now used
by more than 60% of Primary Care Orgamisations in the
UK, with annualised savings to the NHS now set to exceed
£20 rmullion

Baronsmead invested in 2007 as part of a secondary
management buy out having recogmzed the unique
position the business occupied tn the Healthcare IT" and
Moedicines Management market [SIS have supported the
business to continue 1ts impressive growth through the
cxpansion of the semor management team, further
investment 1 product and service development and the
rclocation to and investment in new prenmses

ScnptSwitch has been completely unaffected by the
recession The business dilivers a tangible return on
investment to each PCT 1t partners with as the cost
savings generated on drug savings exceed the annual
hcense fee by some way This makes the service compelling
to the NHS and has fuelled the growth in the business over
the last three years

As noted 1n the Chairman's Statement, the investment in
ScriptSwitch was reahsed shortly after yvear end resulting
I a return, wncluding expected future payments,
approaching four times cost

www scriptswitch com

“Investing 1n the business platform”’
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Board of Directors

as at 30 September 2009

Godfrey Jilings

(Date of appointment

18 February 1998)

(aige 69) 15 non-executive
chairman ot Spring Studios He
held a range of semor executive
appointments at NatWest
including responsinlity for
thewr retaul stockbroking, umt
trust and PEP operations He
was cluef executive officer of
FIMBRA, the regulatory body
for IFAs and a deputy chief
exceutive officer of 1ts successor
PIA (1990-1994) He was
chairman of Ma Potter’s until a
successful trade sale and deputy
chairman of DBS plc (1996-
2002), the leading IFA network
prior to 1its take-over He was
deputy chawrman of Gladedale
Holdings Limuted until its sale
carlier this year He 1s also a
director of Baronsmead VCT
pk

Clive Parritt (Chairman)

Date of appointment 18 Fchruary 1998
{age 66) 15 a chartered accountant with over 30 years’ experience of providing
strategic, financial and commeraial advice to meduum sized businesses Until February
2001 he was chairman of Baker Tilly having been its national managing partner for
ten years until June 1996 He 1s Vice President of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales and charrman of DiGiCo Europe Limrted and of BG
Consulting Group Limited as well as a director of Londen & Associated Properties PLC
and F&C US Smaller Compares PLC Previously he has chaired or been a director of a
number of investment trusts, VCTs and media businesses He 15 also a non-executive
director of Baronsmead AIM VCT ple

Gilllan Nott OBE

(Date of appointment

18 February 1998}

{age 64) has in-depth
wxpenence of private investors
as chit exeeutwe of ProShare
(1994-1999) Previcusly she
was responsible for the private
cquity portfolio at BP and has
been on the board of the F5A
She 1s currently a non-
executive director of BlackRock
Smaller Companies Trust plc
and Martin Currie Portfoho
Investment Trust plc and 15
chawrman of Witan Pacific
Investment Trust plc She has
also been on the board of
Liverpool Victona Friendly
Soaety sucee May 2005, and 1s
a deputy chairman of the
Association of Investment
Companws Gill 1s non
exautive Director of
Baronsmead VC1 3 and
Chairman of Baronsmead VCT

Nicholas Timpson

{Date of appointment

18 Fehruary 1998)

{age 68) was the founder,
charrman and managing director
of Furnitureland Holdings ple
He 1s also a dircetor of The
Vestey Group Ltd He brings te
the Board long ¢xperunce in the
development of private
companks Before founding
Furnitureland Holdings plc in
1973, he worked as a
management consultant for
Mchinsey & Co He will retue as
a director at the forthconung
Annual General Mueting

Howard Goldring

{Date of appomtment

11 November 2009)

{age 59) 15 Charrman of Detmore
Asset Management Limited, which
manages nvestment portfohos and
specialises 1n global assct allocation
advice He was previously director
for Global Strategy at Allred
Dunbar Assct Management (now
Threadneedle Asset Management)
Previously Howard was Allied
Dunbar's lead UK equuty director,
managing the UK pension equaty
fund heading a team of UK fund
manﬂgcra

Howard was retated as a
consultant for global strategy by
Allied Dunbar for three years after
he left to set up Delmore He later
served as a non-eaccutive director
of Liverpoul Victoria Asset
Management Lumted from 1997
to 2003, spuafally providng
asset allocation advice

He 15 a non-cxecutive director ot
London & Assouated Propertics
PLC

As a {ully listed Company, Baronsmead VCT 2 plc 1s requured to comply with the Financial Reporting Council’'s Combined Code on
Corporate Governance This Cede requures the Company to be headed by an effective Board of Directors who lead and control the

Company’s affairs

The directors of a VCT and the investment manager are required under the hsting rules and continuing obhgations of the London
Stock Exchange to have sufficient and satisfactory experience 1n the management of a portfolio of unquoted investments of the size
and type in which the VCT proposes to mwvest




Report of the Directors

Results and Dividends

The Directors present the twelfth Report and audited financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 30 September
2009

Ordinary Shares f'oo0
Profit on ordinary activities after taxation 285
Intenm dividend of 2 5p per ordinary

share patd on 26 June 2009 (1,778
Total dwvidends pard n year (1,774}

Subject to approval at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting
the fina! proposed dividend of 3 0p per ordmnary share will be
paid on 30 December to shar¢holders recorded on the regrster on
27 November 2009

Principal Activity and Status

The Company 15 regstered as a Public Limtted Company tinder
the Companzes Acts 2006 The Directors have managed, and
intend to continue to manage, the Company’s affairs 1 such a
manner as to comply with Sectron 274 of the Income Tax Act
2007 which grants approval as a VCT

Business Review

The Business Review has been prepared 1n accordance with the
requurements of Sechion 417 of the Companies Act 2006 and best
practice The purpose of this review 1s to previde sharehelders
with a summary setting out the business objectives of the
Company, the Board's strategy to achieve those objectives, the
risks faced, the regulatory environment and the key performance
indicators (KPIs) used to measure performance

Strategy for achieving objectives

Baronsmead VCT 2 ple 1s a tax ethaent company listed on
the London Stock Cxchange's mam market for listed
securities

Investment Objective

The investment ohjechive of the Company 15 to achieve long-term
mnvestment returns for private mvestors, mncluding tax-free
dnndends

Investment Policy

The Company’s mvestment policy 15 to invest primarly n a
diverse portfolio of UK growth businesses, whether unquoted or
traded on AIM

[nvestments are made selectively across a range of sectors in
companies that have the potential to grow and enhance therr
value

Investment securities

The Company 1nvests 1n a range of securrties including, but not
Imited to, ordinary and preference shares, loan stocks,
convertible securities, and fixed-interest securtties as well as
cash Unquoted mvestments are usually structured as a
combination of ordinary shares and loan stocks, while AIM
mvestments are primarily held in ordinary shares Pending
mvestment m unquoted and AIM-traded secunties, cash 15
primartly held m an interest bearing money market opent ended
mvestnient company (QEIC), UK gilts and Treasury Bills

UK companies

[nvestments are primarily made in companies which are
substantially based 1in the UK, although many of these mvestees
will trade overseas The compames in which investments are made
must have no more than £15 mullion of gross assets at the time of
investment (or £7 mullion 1f the funds being mvested were rased
after 5 April 2006) to be classed as a VCT qualifying holding

VCT regulation

The mvestmint policy 15 designed to ensure that the Company
continues to quahfy and 1s approved as a VCT by HM Revenue
and Customs Amongst other conditions, the Company may not
mnvest more than 15 per cent of its investments 1n a single
company and must have at least 70 per cent by value of 1ts
mvestments throughout the period mn shares or securities
comprised in quabfying holdings, of which 30 per cent by value
must be ordinary shares which carry no preferential nghts I[n
addition, 1t must have at least 10 per cent by value of its total
investments 1n any quahfying company 1n ordinary shares
which carry no preferential nghts

Asset mix

The Company aims to be at least 90 per cent invested i growth
businesses subject always to the quality of mvestment
opportumties and the immg of realisatzons Any un-invested
funds are held in cash and nterest bearing securities It 15
intended that at least 75 per cent of any funds raised by the
Company will be invested i VCT quahfying investments

Risk diversification and maximum exposures

Risk 1s spread by investing 1n a number of difterent businesses
within different qualifying industry sectors using a mxture of
securittes The maximum quahfying amount invested 1n any one
company 1s hmted to £1 milhon 1n a fiscal yvear and generally no
more than £2 5 milhon at cost 15 mnvested in the same company
The value of an individual investment 1s expected to increase over
time as a result of trading progress and a continuous assessment
15 made of 1ts surtability for sale

Investment style

Investments are selected 1n the expectation that the application of
private equuty disciplines including an active management style
for unquoted compantes will enhance value and enable profits to
be realised from planned exits

Co-investment
The Company aims to inwvest 1n larger more mature unquoted
and AIM companies and to achieve this it mvests alongside the



Report of the Directors

other Baronsmead VCTs As such, at the time of imtal
nvestment, the combined investment can currently total up te a
maximumn of £6 5 mulhon for unguoted and £4 4 milhon for
AIM nvestees Currently, ISIS EP LLP (‘the Manager’) and 1ts
executive members are mandated to mvest m unquoteds
alongside the Company on terms which ahgn the interests of
shareholders and the Manager

Borrowing powers

The Company s Articles permrt borrowmg to give a degree of
investment flexabihity The Company’s pohcy 15 to use borrowing
for short term hqudity purposes only

Management

The Board has delegated the management of the investment
portfolio to the Manager The Manager also provides or procures
the provision of company secretarmal, admimstratrve, accounting
and custodian services to the Company

The Manager has adopted a ‘top-down, sector-driven’ approach
to identifying and evaluating petential investment opportunities,
by assessing a forward view of firstly the business environment,
then the sector and finally the specific potential investment
opportunity Based on 1ts research, the Manager has selected a
number of sectors that 1t helieves will offer attractive growth
prospects and 1nvestment opportunities Drversification 1s also
achieved by spreading investments across different asset classes
and making investments for a varety of different perrods

The Manager’s Review on pages 7 to 8 provides a review of the
mvestment portfolio and of market conditions during the year

Principal nsks, risk management and regulatory
environment

The Board beheves that the principal rnsks faced by the Company
are

- Economic risk — events such as an economic recession and
movement 1n interest rates could affect smaller companies
valuations

- Loss of approval as a Venture Capital Trust - the Company
must comply with Section 274 of the Income Tax Act 2007
which allows 1t to be exempted from capital gamns tax on
mvestment gans Any bhreach of these rules may lead to the
Company losing its approval as a VCT, quahfying
shareholders who have not held thewr shares for the
designated holding period having to tepay the income tax
relief they obtamed and future drvidends pard by the
Company becoming subject to tax The Company would also
lose 1ts exemption from corperation tax on capital gains

- Investment and strategic — an inappropriate strategy, poor
asset allocation or consistent weak stock selection nught lead
to under performance and poor returns to shareholders
Therefore the Company’s investment strategy 15 periodically
reviewed by the Board wiich considers at each meeting the
performance of the investment portfolio

- Regulatory - the Company s required to comply with the
Companies Acts 2006, the rules of the UK Listing Authority
and United Kingdom Accountmg Standards Breach of any of
these mught lead to suspension of the Company’s Stock
Exchange hsting, financial penalties or a quahified audnt
report

- Reputational - madequate or failed controls might result in
breaches of regulations or loss of shareholder trust

— Operational - farlure of the Manager’'s and admmustrator’s
accounting systems or disruption to its business might
lead to an nability to provide accurate 1eporting and
monttoring

—~ Fmnancaal - the Board has identifted the Company’s princpal
financtal risks which are set out 1n the notes to the Financial
Statements on pages 39 to 43 Inadequate controls might lead
to misappropriation of assets [nappropriate accounting
policies might lead to msreporting or breaches of
regulations

- Market nsk - investment in AIM traded, PLUS traded and
unquoted compames by nature mvelve a higher degree of
risk than investment in compantes traded on the main
market In particular, smaller compamnes often have hnuted
product lines, markets or financal resources and may be
dependent for their management en a smaller number of key
indviduals In addibon, the market for stock 1n smaller
compamnes 15 often less liqud than that for stock n larger
compantes, bringing with it potential difficulties 1n
acquuring, valuing and disposing of such stock

—  Ligqudity nsk - the Company’s investments may be difficult
to realise The fact that a share is traded on AIM does not
guarantee 1ts hquidity The spread between the buymng and
selling price of such shares may he wide and thus the price
used for valuation may not be achievable

— Competitrve rnisk — retention of key personnel of the Manager
15 vital to the success of the Company Appropnate incentives
are m place to ensure retention of such personnet

The Board secks to imitigate the internal risks by setting polhicy,
regular review of pertormance, enforcement of contractual
oblgations and monttoring progress and comphance In the
mutigatien and management of these rsks, the Board applies
ngorously the principles detatled i the Turnbull guidance
Detanls of the Company’s 1nternal controls are contained 1 the
Corporate Governance and Internal Control sections on

pages 24 to 25

Performance and key performance indicators (KPIs)

The Board (xpects the Manager to deltver a performance which
meets the objective of achreving long term investment returns,
including tax-free dividends

Performance, measured by dividends paid to shareholders and
the change 1 NAV per share, 15 also measured agamnst the FTSC
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All-Share Total Return Index This index, as the widest measure
of UK quoted equuties, has been adopted as an informal
benchmark Investment performance, cash returned to
shareholders and share price are also measured against the
Company's peer group of six other generalist venture capntal
trusts A review of the Company’s performance during the
financral period, the position of the Company at the year end and
the outlook for the coming year 1s contamed within the
Chairman'’s statement on pages 4 to 6

The Board assesses the performance of the Manager 1 meeting
the Company’s objective against the primary KPIs highhghted on
pages 1 to 3 of this Report and Accounts

Issue and Buy-Back of Shares

Durtng the period the Company 1ssued 9,694,179 ordmnary
shares of 10p ¢ach and raised net proceeds of £8,403,369

During the period the Company bought back 752,136 ordinary
shares to be hcld in Treasury, at a cost of £584,042 These shares
will not be sold at a discount wader than the discount prevailing
at the hime the shares were mmtally bought back by the
Company The Company holds 5,993,906 ordinary shares 1n
Treasury representing 8 O per cent of the 1ssued share capital as
at 17 November 2009

Directors

Biographies of the Directors are shown on page 16

On 11 November 2009, Howard Goldring was appomnted as a
director and having been appomnted during the yoar wall submat
humself for election as a director at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting being the first General Meeting since
appomntment His biography appears on page 16

Mr N G L Timpson will retire as a director on 14 December 2009
at the cessation of the forthcommg Annual General Meeting and
will not seek re-clection as a director

As explained 1in more detail under Corporate Governance on
pages 24 and 25 and 1n accordance with the provisions of the
Combined Code, the Board has agreed that Directors who have
held office for more than mine years will retire annually
Accordingly, as all the Company’s Directors other than

Mr H Goldring have held office for a peniod of more than mne
years, all other Directors wall retire by rotation at the
torthcoming Annual General Mceting of the Company and, bang
clrgible, offer themsilves for re-clection The Board has deaided
that Mrs G Nott who 1s a director of Baronsmead VCT ple and
Baronsmead VCT 3 ple, Mr G Jillings who 1s a director of
Baronsmead VCT ple, Mr C Parritt who 15 a director of
Baronsmead AIM VCT plc will seck annual re-clection

As explained above, these Directors already seek annual
re-clection under the Combined Code

The Board confirms that, followmg formal performance
waluations, the purtormance of cach of the Directors continues
to be effective and demonstrates commitment o the role, the
Board believes that 1t 1s therefore 1in the best intcrests of
shareholders that these Directors be elected or re-elected

The interests of the D"'""g?’i_;% ey Im% r‘a;}:'%geb of tl;s Ee%'féiﬁ%@ya o%g

the beginning and at the end of the year, or date’of appointment,
if later, were as follows

ordinary Ordinary

10p shares 1op shares

Clive Parnit 71,212 59,545
Godfrey Jillings 240,030 189,229
Gillian Nott 23,341 11,799
Nicholas Timpson 353,846 331,114
Howard Goldring* - -
Total shares held 688,429 591,682

*appomnted on 11 November 2006

There have been no changes i the holdings of the Directors
hetween 30 September 2009 and 17 November 2009

No Dtrector has a service contract with the Company

All Drrectors are members of the Audit, Management
Engagement and Remuneration and Nommation Commuttees

The Directors who held office at the date of approval of this
Directors’ Report confirm that, so far as they are each aware,
there 15 no relevant audit intormation of which the Company’s
auditors are unaware, and each Dhrector has taken all the steps
that they ought to have taken as a Direclor to make themselves
aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the
Company’s auditors are aware of that information

Companies Act 2006 Disclosures

In accordance with Schedule 7 of the Large and Medium Size
Competries and Groups (Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008
the Directors disclose the following information

e the Company’s capital structure and voling nghts are
summartsed in Note 13, and there are neo restrictions on
voting rights nor any agreement between holders of
securities that resalt in restrctions on the transtor of
secunties or on voling nghts,

e there exist no securtties carrying special rights with regard to
the control of the Company,

e the Company does not have an umploytes’ share scheme,

e the rules concerning the appointment and replacement of
Directors, amendment of the Articles of Association and
powers to 1ssue or buy back the Company’s shares are
contained in the Articles of Asseciation of the Company and
the Companies Act 2006,

¢ there exast no agreements lo which the Company 1s party
that may affect its control following a takeover ind and

e thure exist no agreaments between the Company and its
Directors providing for compensation for loss of office that
may occur because of a takeover bid,
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The Board recognmses the requirement under Section 417(5) of
the Act to detail information about environmental matters
(ncluding the impact of the Company’s business on the
envirenment), any Company employees and social and
commumty tssues, including information about any policies 1t
has in relation to these matters and effectiveness of these policies
As the Company has no employees or policies i these matters
this requurement does not apply

Directors’ Professional Development

When a new director 15 appeointed he or she s offered an
minduction programme that 15 held by the Manager Directors are
also provided on a regular basis wath key information on the
Company’s policies, regulatory and statutory requirements and
mternal controls Changes affecting directors’ responsibilitics are
advised to the Board as they artse Directors also regularly
participate in mndustry seminars

Directors’ Indemnity

Directors and officers” hability msurance cover 1s 1n place in
respect of the directors The Company's Articles of Assoctation
provide, subject to the provisions of UK legislation, an indemmty
for directors 1n respect of costs which they may incur relating to
the detence of any procecdings brought agamnst them ansing out
of thewr positions as directors, in which they are acquutted or
Judgenunt ts given n thewr favour by the Court

Conflicts of Interest

The Companies Act 2006 sets out Directors’ general rules which
largely codify the exasting law but wath some changes Under the
2006 Act, from 1 Oclober 2008, a Director must avoid a
situation where he has, or could have, a direct or tndirect interest
that conflicts, or possibly may contlict with the Company’'s
mterests The requirement 1s very broad and could apply, for
example, If a Director becomes a Director of another company or
a trustee of another orgamisation The 2006 Act allows Dircctors
of public companies to authorise conflicks and potential confhets,
where appropriate, where the articles of associalion contain o
provision to this effect The 2006 Act also allows the articles of
association to contain other provisions for dealing with
Directors” conflicts of mterest to avoud a breach of duty

On 31 July 2008 shareholders approved a resolution amending
the Company’s articles of assoectation to give the Directors
authority lo approve such situations and to include other
provisions to allow confhicts of nterest to be dealt with i a
surular way to the current position There are safeguards which
will apply when Directors decide whether to authorise a conflict
of interest or potential conflict First, only Drectors who have no
iterest mn the matter hang considered wall be able to take the
retevant decision, and secondly, in taking the decisien th
Directors must act tn a way they consider, 1n good faith, will be
most likely to promote the Company’s success The Directors
will be able to tmposc mits or condihons when giing
authortsation 1f they think this 1s appropriate 11 1s the Board's
ntention to report annually on the Company's procedures for
ensuring that the Board’s powers of authonsation of conflicts are
operated eftectively and that the procedures have been followed

The Directors have declared any conflicts of interest to the
Company Secretary, who mamtains the Register of Directors’
Conflicts of Interests It 1s reviewed annually by the Board, except
when changes are notified, and the Directors advise the Company
Secretary as soon as they become aware of any conflicts of
interest Directors who have conflicts of mnterest will not take
part 1n any discussions which relate to any of ther conflicts

Whistleblowing

The Board has constdered the Combined Code’s recommuendations
n respect of arrangements by which staff of the Manager or
Secretary of the Company may, i1 confidence, raise concerns
within their respective organmisations about possible
improprieties in matters of financial reporting or other matters
It has concluded that adequate arrangements are 1n place for the
proportionate and independent investigation of such matters
and, where necessary, for appropnate follow-up action to be
taken within thetr respective organisations

Management

ISIS CP LLP manages the mnvestments for the Company From
1 January 2007, the hiqund asscts wathin the portfolio (bung
cash, gilts and other assets, which are not categorised as
venlture capital investments for the purpose of the FSA’s rules)
have been managed by FPPE LLP Thus 1s a hmited partriership,
which 15 authorised and regulated by the FSA and which has
the same controlling members as the Manager The Manager
has continued to act as the manager of the Company and as the
Investment Manager of the Company's tlhquid assets (being all
AlM-traded and other venture caprtal invistments)

The personnel involved 1n providing management arl
mvestment management services to the Company has not
changed as a result of the implementation of these
darrangements

The Manager also provides or procures the provision of
secretartal, admumstrative and custodian services to the
Company The management agreement may be terminated at
any date by etther party giving twelve months’ notice of
termination Under the management agreement, the Manager
recerves a fee of 2 0 per cent per annum of the net assets of the
Company

In addition, the Manager recetves an annual secretartal and
accounting fee of £39,420, adjusted annually for movements in
the UK Retatl Price Index, plus a variable fec of 0 125 per cent of
the net assets of the Company which excecd £5 mullion, subject
to annual review The annual secretartal and accounting fee 15
subyect to a maximum of £114,000 per annum adpisted
annually for movements in the UK Retal Price Index

Annual runnng costs are capped at 3 5 per cent of the nul
assets of the Company (excluding any performance fee payable
to the Manager and rrecoverable VAT), any wxcess being
refunded by the Manager by way of an adjustment to 1ts
management fee
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It 15 the Board’s oprmion that the continuing appointment of 1515
LP LLP on the terms agreed 15 in the best 1nterests of shareholders
as a whole

Co-investment Scheme

The Scheme 15 intended to help attract, retam and incentivise certain
executive members of the Manager and reflects schemes which are
used elsewhere 1n the private equity industry in the UK It requires
all the members of the Scheme to invest therr own capital into a
propor ion of the ordinary shares of each and every unquoted
investment made by the Baronsmead VCTs {except those hife
sciences transactions where the Manager 15 not the lead investor)

The shares held by the members of the Co-investment Scheme in
any portfolio company can only be sold at the same tume as the
investment held by the generalist Baronsmead VCTs In addibion,
any prior ranking financial instruments, e g loan stock, held by
the Baronsmead VCTs have to be repard n full prior to any gain
accriung to the ordinary shares

As al 30 September 2009 38 executives of the Manager had
mvested a total of approxamately £122,000 in the ordinary shares
of 19 unquoted investments through the Co-nvestment Scheme
alongside Baronsmead VCT 2 plc The amount invested by
Baronsmead VCT 2 plcn these 19 companes totals
approxumately £20 8m During the year to 30 September 2009
the mvestment m Green Issucs was written off [n the prior
financial year one investment was sold (Boldon James) and the
return achieved for the Company was 3 1 times cost with the
members of the Co-mnvestmen! Scheme realising approximately
£62,000 1n respect of the proportton of the investment
attributable to Baronsmead VCT 2 ple The sale of ScnptSwatch
after the finanaal vear end will also generate an excdllent return
for Baronsmead VCT 2 plc and the Co-investment Scheme

The Board reviews the operation of the Co-investment Scheme at
each quarterly valuation meeting

Performance Incentive

A performance fee will not he payable to the Manager until the
total rcturn on shareholders’ funds exceeds an annual threshold
of hase rate plus 2% calculated on a compound basts To the
extent that the lotal return cxceeds the threshold of base rate plus
2% on shareholders’ funds compounded over the relevant pertod
then a performance fee will be pard to the Manager of 16 66% of
such excess to 31 March 2008 and 13 33% to 31 March 2009
and 10% thereafter The amount of any performance fee which 1s
paid 1n an accounting period shall be capped at 5% ot
shareholders’ funds for that period

ISIS EQuity Partners - Arrangement Fees

During the period to 30 September 2009, ISIS EP LLP recerved
mcome of Lntl (2008 £203,298, net of abort costs) from
Investce companies in connection with arrangement fees and
ncurrad abort fees of £7,780

VCT Status Adviser

The Company has retained PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP {(PwC)
as thur VCT Tax Status Advisers to advise it on comphance with

VCT requirements Pw(C review new mvestment opporturnties,
as appropriate, and review regularly the mvestment portfol:o of
the Company PwC work closely with the Manager but report
dircetly to the Board

Creditor Payment Policy

The Company’s payment policy 15 to settle investment
transactions 1n accordance with market practice and to ensure
settlement of supplier invoices i accordance with stated terms

Environment

The Company seeks to conduct 1ts affairs respeonsibly and
environmental factors are, where appropriate, taken mto
consideration with regard to investment dectsions

Substantial Interests i Share Capital

Al 17 November 2009 the Company was not aware of any
beneficial interests exceeding 3 per cent of the 1ssued Ordinary
Share capital

Going Concern

The Directors are of the opion that :t 1s appropnale to continue
to adopt the going concern basis in the preparatien of the Annual
Report, as after making enquiries and hearing tn mund the
nature of the Company’s business, assets and cash flow forecasts
and due consideration, the Directors are of the opinion that the
Company has adequate resources to continue mn operational
extstence for the foresecable future

Annual General Meeting

A notice for the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be
held at 11 00 am on 14 December 2009 at the London Stock
Cxchange, 10 Paternoster Square, London CC4M 7LS s set out on
pages 44 and 45 The following notes provide an explanation ot
resolutions ¢ to 13

Auditors

KPMG Audit Pl have expressed thewr wilhngness to continue tn
office as auditors and a resolution proposing ther appontment
will be submutted in the Notice of the Annual General Meeting

Authority to Allot Shares and Disapplication
of Pre-Emption Rights

The authority proposed under Resolution 9 1s requured so that
the Directors may offer existing shareholders the opportunty
to add to their investment or to offer to potential shareholders
an opportunity to invest mn the Company 1n a tax efficient
manner without the Company having to mcur substantial
costs including, 1f the Directors believe it apprepriate to
implement a devidend reinvestment scheme, pursuant to such
ascheme Any conscquent increase in the size of the Company

n
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will, in the opinton of the Directors, be in the mterests of
shareholders generally Any 1ssue proceeds will be available for
mvestment n line with the Company’s investment policy and
may he used, m part, to purchase ordinary shares 1n the
market

There are no present plans to undertake a nghts ssue or to allot
shares other than pursuant to a Dividend Reinvestment
Scheme

Resolution 10 renews and extends the Directors’ authornity to
allot equity securitws for cash without pre-emption rights
applyng in certamn arcumstances This resolution would
authorise the Directors, until the date falling 15 months after the
date of the passing of the Resolution or, if earher, the conclusion
of the Annual General Meeting of the Company in 2010, to 1ssue
ordinary shares for cash withoul pre-emption rights applying
(1) up to a maximum of 6,873,630 ordinary shares (representing
approximately 10 per cent of the Company’s 1ssued share caprtal
as al 17 November 2009) pursuant 1o a dividend remnvestment
scheme and () up to o maximum of 13,747,260 ordinary shares
(representing approximately 20 per cent of the Company’s
1ssued share capital as at 17 Novumber 2009) pursuant to offers
for shares Thrs power will be exercised only 1if, in the optnton of
the Directors, it would be in the best interests of shareholders, as
a wholc

Treasury Shares

The Company currently holds 5,993,906 ordinary shares 1n
Treasury representing approximately 8 0% of the Company’s
1ssued ordinary shares 1If Resolution 10 1s passed the Board wall
consider self permutted by shareholders to re-1ssue ordinary
shares out of Treasury pursuant to a dividend ranvestment
scheme or at a discount to the prevailling NAV pur ordinary share
if the Board considers 1l 1n the best interests of the Company to
do so However, ordinary shares will never be re-tssued out of
Treasury at a discount wider than the discount prevailing at the
time the shares were imtially bought back by the Company The
resolution will also allow the Company to 1ssue shares out of
Treasury without pre-emption nghts applying

Currently there 1s a two way secondary market i1 the
Company's shares It 15 the Board's mtention only to use the
mechanism of re-1ssuing Treasury shares when demand for the
Company’s shares 1s greater than the supply avanlable mn the
market place Although shares re-issued from Treasury will not
attracl the 30 per cent imtial income tax rehef, all further
dividends will be tax-free and 1if these shares are subsequently
sold no capital gans tax 15 payablc by quahfying shareholders

Directors’ Authority to Purchase Shares

The current authority of the Company to make purchases of up
to approximately 14 99 per cent of its 1ssued share capital expires
at the «nd of the Annual General Meeting and Resolution 11 seeks
renewal of such authorty until the Annual General Meeting n
2010 (or the expiry of 15 months, if earher) The price pad for
shares will not be less than the nonunal valuc nor more than the

maximum amount permutted to be paid in accordance with the
rules of the UK Listing Authority in force as at the date of
purchase This power will be exercised only if, 1n the opimon of
the Direclors, a repurchase would be in the best interests of
shareholders as a whole Any shares repurchased under this
authortty will either be cancelled or held 1in Treasury for future
re-sale m appropriate market condiions

Articles of Association

The Company proposes to adopt new Articles of Assoctation
{the New Articles) i order to update the current Articles of
Assoclation (the Current Articles) to reflect the changes in
English company law brought about by the Companies Act 2006
as amended by the Shareholders’ Rights Regulations which came
into force m August 2009 to increase the hmit on Directors’ fees
and generally update the Articles of Association for current
regulations and market practie The principal changes .
introduced 1n the New Articles are summarised i the |

explanatory notes on pages 47 to 49 Other changes which are of

a munor, technical or clarfymg nature and also some changes

wluch reflect changes made by the Companies Act 2006 or |
which conform certain language 1in the New Articles to be |
consistent m the Model Articles for public companmies have not

been noted i the explanation on pages 47 to 49 The New

Arlicles showing all the changes to the Current Articles are |
avalable for inspection at the registered office until the time of

the AGM and at the AGM venue from 15 minutes before the
commencement of the AGM and until 1t ends

The Shareholders’ Rights Regulations which came mto force 1in
August 2009 requures the Company to convene all general
meetings on at luast 21 days notice unless shareholders approve a
shorter pertod of not less than the 14 clear days for a meeting
other than the annual general meeting

The Board beheves that it ts in the best interests of shareholders of ‘
the Company to ensure that the mtmmum notice penod can |
remain at 14 days The Board 1s therefore proposing Resolution

13 as a spectal resolution to approve the reduction in the |
munimum notice period from 21 clear days to 14 clear days and
as a result 14 clear days 1s the mmnimum pertod of notice for all

gencral meetings other than annual general meetings

The Board considers that the resolutions to be put to the mecting
are 1n the best interests of the Company and its shareholdurs as a
whole The Board will be voting m favour of the resolutions
regarding the Articles and unanimously recommends that you
do so as well

By Order of the Boa
P M Forster

100 Wood Strect
London EC2V 7A

17 November 2009




Directors’ Remuneration Report

The Board has prepared this report, m accordance with the
requirements of Schedule 8 of the Large and Medium Sized
Companies and Groups (Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008
An ordinary resolution for the approval of this report wall be pul
to the members at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting

The law requires the Company’s auditors, KPMG Audit Ple, to
audit certamn of the disclosures provided Where disclosures
have been audited, they are indicated as such The auditors’
opimon 1s mcluded 1n the ‘Independent Auditors’ Report’

Board of Directors and their Fees

The Board which 1s profiled on page 16 consists solely of
independent non-executive Directors and constders at least
annually the level of the Board’s fees, in accordance with the
Combined Code on Corporate Governance The Company
Secretary provides information on comparative levels of
Directors fees to the Board 1n advance of each review

The Board concluded follow:ing a review of the level of
Drirectors fees for the forthconung year that, as the fees of the
Charrman and Directors have not increased since 2006 tt 1s
appropriate to uwrease the Directors fies, 1n Iine with inftation
whuch has been 10 5% over the puned, to £15,500 pa and the
Charrman’s fee to £23,500 pa frem | October 2009

The Remuneration Commuttee comprises all the Directors of

the Company The Chairman of the Commuttee 15 G Nott As the
Company has no executive Directors, the Remuneration
Comnuttee meets, at least annually, to review the remuneration
and terms of appointment of the Manager

Policy on Directors’ Fees

The Board's policy 15 that the remuncration of non-executive
Directors should reflect the expertence of the Board as a whole,
be farr and comparable to that of other relevant venture capital
trusts that are stmtlar in size and have sumlar mnvestment
objectives and structures Furthermore the level of
remuneration should be sufficient to attract and retain the
Directors needed to oversee properly the Company and to
reflect the speaific circumstances of the Company, the dutws
and responsibilitics of the Directors and the value and amount
of tume commutted to the Company’s affarrs 1t 15 mtended that
this policy will continue for the year ended 30 September 2010
and subsequent years

Directors’ service contracts

It 1s the Board’s policy that Directors do not have service contracts,
but new Directors are provided with a letter of appomtment

that In accordance with the Combined Code on Corporate
Governance, Directors who have served on the Board for more
than ¢ years must offer themselves for re-election on an
annual basis There 15 no notice period and no provision for
compensation upon carly termination of appointment

Company performance

The Board 15 responsible for the Company’s mvestment
strategy and performance, although the management of the
Company’s mvestment portfelio 1s delegated to the Manager
through the management agreement, as referred to in the
"Report of the Directors’ The graph below compares for the
five years ending 30 September 2009, the percentage change
over each pertod 1n the total return (assuming all dividends are
remnvested) to ordinary shareholders compared to the
percentage change over each period 1n total sharcholder return
on a notronal mvestment made up of shares of the same kmd
and number as thosc by reference to which the FTSC All-Share
Index 15 calculated This index was chosen for comparison
purposes, as it represents a widely understood broad equity
market index aganst whrch mvestors can measure the relative
performance of the Company An explanatton of the
performance of the Company 1s given 1n the Chatrman’s
Statement and Manager’s Review

Directors’” emoluments for the Period (audited)

The Directors who served m the period recerved the following
emoluments in the form of fecs

Date of Due date for Fees Fees

anginal Re-election 2009 2008
Director appointment Jelection £'000 £'a00
C Parntt 18 February 1998 AGM 2009 C Parnnt 21 21
G nlhings 18 February 1998 AGM 2009 G ithings 14 14
G Nott 18 February 1998 AGM 2009 G Nott 14 4
N Timpson 18 February 1998 N/A N Timpson 14 4
H Goldnng 11 November 2009 AGM 2009 Total 63 63

The terms of Directors’ appointments provide thal Dircclors
should retire and be subject to re-elecion at the first Annual
General Meeting after their appomntment Directors are
thereafter obliged to retire by rotation, and to offer themsilves
for re-clection by shareholders at least every three years atter

Gillian Nott
Charrman of the Management Engagement and Remuneration
Commutlec

17 November 2009

23
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Corporate Governance

Arrangements 1 respect of corporate governance, appropriate to
a venture capital trust, have been made by the Board The Board
has constdered the principles and recommendations of the
Association of investment Compantes’ Code of Corporate
Governance 1ssued 1n March 2009 (*AIC Code’) by reference to the
AIC Corporate Governance Guide for Investment Companies (*AIC
Guide’) The AIC Code, as explmined by the AIC Guide, addresses all
the principles sel out 1 Sectron 1 of the Comned Code on
Corporate Governance 1ssued by the Finanaal Reporting Council
in July 2003 and revised m June 2006 (‘the Combined Code’), as
well as setting out additional principles and recommendations on
1ssues which are of speafic relevance to the Company

The Board considers that reporting agamnst the principles and
recommendations of the AIC Code, and by reference to the AIC
Gude (which incorporates the Combined Code) wall provide
better information to shareholders

Except as disclosed below, the Company complied throughout
the period with the recommendations of the AIC Code and the
relevant provisions of Section 1 of the Combined Code Since all
the Directors are non-executive the provisions of the Combined
Code 1n respect of the role of the chief executive are not relevant
to the Company and, hkewtse, the provistons of the Combined
Code relating to Direclors’ remuneration are not relevant except
n so far as they relate specifically to non-executive Directors For
the reasons set out 1n the AIC Guide, and m the preamble to the
Combined Code, the Board considers that these provisions are not
relevant te the Company, being an externally managed venture
capital trust The Company has therefore not reported further in
respect of these provisions

In view of the requirement m the Articles of Association that all
[Dhrectors retire by rotation, the Board constders that it 15 not
appropriale for the Directors to be appomnted for a specified term
as recommended by principle 3 of the AIC Code and prowvision
A 7 2 of the Combined Code However, the Board has agreed that
wach Director will retire and, 1f appropriate, seek re-clection after
each three years’ service, and annually after serving on the Board
for more than mine years

The Board consists solely of non-exccutive Directors of which
Mr Parntt 1+ Chairman and Mr Tumpson 1s Scnior Independent
Director Tollowing Mr Timpson’s retirement as a director,

Mr Jilhngs will become Semor Independent Director All
Directors are considered by the Board to be independent of the
Company's Manager

As explained earher, Mr G Jilhings and Mrs G Nott are directors of
Baronsmead VCT plc, Mrs G Nott 15 also a Director of
Baronsmead VCT 3 plc and Mr C Parritt 15 a Director of
Baronsmead AIM VCT plc, which are all managed by 1SIS EP
LLP The Board does not consider that a Director’s tenure reduces
therr alihity to act independently The Board believes that, as a
whole, 1t comprises an appropriate balance of skills, expenence
and knowladge It also behieves that each Director 1s independent
in character and judgement and that there are no relationships
or circumstances which are likely to affect the judgement of any
Director

The Company has no executive Directors or employees

A management agreement between the Company and 1ts
Manager, I51S CP LLP, sets out the matters over which the
Manager has authonty and the hnuts above which Board
approval must be sought All other matters, including strategy,
mvestment and dividend policies, gearing, and corporate
governance procedures, are reserved for the approval of the
Board of Directors The Board meets at leasl quarterly and
receives full information about the Company's investment
performance, assets, habilities and other relevant information m
advance of Board meetings The Manager, 1n the absunce of
exphat mstructions from the Board, 1» empoweruad to exercise
discretion 1n the use of the Company's voting rights All
shareholdings are voted, where practicable, 1n accordance with
the Manager’s own corporate governance policy, which 1s to
seek to maximuse shareholder value by constructive use of votes
at company meetings and by endeavouring to use its mnfluence
as an investor with a principled appreach to corporate
governance

Throughout the pernod a number of commuttees have been in
operation The commuttees are the Audit Commmttee, the
Management Cngagement and Remuneration Commuttee and the
Nomunation Commuttee

The Audit Commuttee, chartred by Mr Parntt, operates within
clearly defined terms of reference and comprises the full Board
The Board has concluded that during the financial year

Mr Parmitt, as the only qualfied chartered accountant on the
Board, 1s hest stuted for the role of chairman of the Audit
Committee The duttes of the Audit Commuttee include reviewing
the annual and mterim accounts, the system of internal controls,
the terms of appointment of the auditors together with therr
remuneration, and ensuring that auditor obyectivity and
independence 15 safeguarded in the provision of non audrt services
by the auditors [t also provides a forum through which the
auditors may report to the Board of Directors and meets at least
twice vearly

The Management Engagement and Remuneration Commuttee,
chaired by Mrs Nott, comprises the full Board and reviews the
appropriateness of the Manager's appointment together with the
terms and conditions thereof on a regular basis

The Nomination Comumittee, chaired by Mr Jillings, comprises
the full Board and ts convened for the purpose of considering the
appointment of additional Directors as and when considered
appropriate In considertng appointments to the Board the
Nommation Comnuttee takes into account the ongomng
requirements of the Company and the need to have a balance of
skills and experince within the Beard

During the perod the performance of the Board, commiltiees and
individual Direclors was evaluated through an assessment
process, led by the Charrman The pertormance of the Chawrman
was evaluated by the other Direclors under the leadership of the
Sentor Independent Director



Corporate Governance

The following table sets out the number of Board and Committee
meetings held for the year to 17 November 2009 and the number
of meetings attended by each Director

Management
Engagernent and
Audit ation
Board Lommittee Commirtee Committee

Held Attended  Held Amended  Held Atended  Held Attended

Clive Parnitt [ 6 2 z 1 1 3 3
Codfrey Jilings § 6 2 2 1 1 3 3
Ciltian Nott & [ 2 2 1 1 3 3
Nicholas Timpson ] 6 z z 5 1 1 3
Howard Gotdring* 3 1 1 1 3 1 1 1

*appointed on 11 Novemmber 2009

Indrvidual Drrectors may, at the expense of the Company, seek
independent professional advice on any matter that concerns
them 1n the furtherance of thewr duties

Relations with Shareholders

The Company welcomes the views of shareholders and places
great importance on commurcahion with tts sharcholders
The Chairman and other Directors are available to meet
shareholders 1if required The Annual General Meeting of the
Company provides a forum both formal and informal, for
shareholders to meet and discuss 1ssues wath the Directors and
Manager of the Company Delails of the resolutions to be
proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting on

14 December 2009 can be found 1n the Notice of Meeting on
pages 44 and 45

Internal Control

The Bourd 1s responsible for the Company’s system of internal
control and for reviewing its effectiveness The Board has
therefore established an ongowng process designed to meet the

partrcular needs of the Company m managing the risks to which
1t 15 exposed, conststent with the Association of [nvestment
Compames Corporate Governance Guide for Investment
Companies The process 1s based principally on the Manager's
existing risk-based approach to nternal control whereby a test
matrix 1s created that identifies the key functions carred out by
the Manager and other service providers, the individual activities
undertaken withm those functions, the risks associated with
each actvity and the controls employed to mummuse those risks
A residual nsk ratmg 1s then apphed The test matrix 1s regularly
updated and the Board 1s provided with regular reports
highlighting all materal changes to the rnsk ratings and
confirming the action which has been, or 1s being, taken A
formal annual review of these procedures 1s carried out by the
Audit Commuttee and includes consideration of internal control
reports and simular reports 1ssued by the Manager and other
service providers

Such review procedures have been 1n place throughout the
financial peniod and up to the date of approval of the full Report
and accounts and the Board 1s satisfied with their effectiveness
These procedures are designed to manage, rather than ehminate,
nsk and by thetr nature can provide reasenable, but not absolute,
assurance against materral misstatement or loss The Board
monitors the mvestment performance of the Company 1n
comparison to a benchmark index and to comparable venture
capital trusts at each Board meeting The Board also reviews the
Company's activities since the previous Beard meeting to ensure
that the Manager adheres to the agreed investment policy and
approved nvestment gudehnes and, 1f necessary, approve
changes to such policy and gudelines

The Board has reviewed the need for an internal audit function
and has concluded that the systems and procedures employed
by the Manager, provide sufficent assurance that a sound
system of internal control, which safeguards shareholders’
mvestment and the Company’s assets, 15 maintamed An
internal audit function, speaific to the Company, 1s therefore
considered unnecessary
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities in respect of the Annual Report and the
Financial Statements

The Directors are responstble for preparing the Annual Report and the Financial Statements 1n accordance with applicable law and
regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare finanaal statements for each financial year Under that law they have elected to
prepare the financial statements in accordance with UK Accounting Standards (UK GAAP)

The financal statements are required by law to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the profit or
loss of the Company for that period

In preparing these financial statements, the Directors are required to
select switable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
make Jjudgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards (LIk GAAP) have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and
explained 1n the financial statements, and
prepare the fmancaal statements on the going concern basis unless 1t 15 Inapproprate to presume that the company will continue 1n

business

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records that disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the Company and enable them to ensure that its finanaal statements comply with the Compames Act 2006 They have
general responsibtlity for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the Company and to prevent

and detect fraud and other rregulanties

Under apphcable law and regulations, the Directors are also responsible for preparing a Directors’ Report (including Business Review),
Drrectors’ Remuneration Report and Corporate Governance Statement that comply with that law and those regulations

The Directors are responsible for the mamtenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on the company’s
website, www baronsmeadvet2 co uk Visitors to the website should be aware that Iegislation in the UK governing the preparation

and dissemmation of finanaal statements may differ from legislabion in other jurisdict:ons

Responsibility statement of the Directors in respect of
the annual financial report

We confirm that to the best of our knowledge

the finanaal statements, prepared in accordance with the applicable set of accounting standards, give a true and fair view of the

assets, habihties, financial position and prefit or loss of the Company, and

the Mhrectors’ Report includes a fair revzew of the development and performance of the business and the position of the 15suer
together with a description of the principal nsks and uncertainties that they face

On behalf of the Board,

Chive A Parntt
Chairman
17 November 2009




Independent Auditors’ Report

Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of Baronsmead V(T 2 Pic

We have audited the financial statements of Baronsmead VCT 2 Ple for the period ended 30 September 2009 which comprise the
Income Statement, the Reconciliation of Movements m Shareholders' Funds, the Balance Sheet, the Cash Flow Statement and the
related notes The financial reporting framework that has been applied 1n thewr preparation 1s applicable law and UK Accounting
Standards (UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

Thus report 15 made solely to the company’s members, as a body, m accordance with sections 495, 496 and 497 of the Comparues
Act 2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we mght state to the company’s members those matters we are requred
to state to them 1n an auditors’ report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or
assume responsibthty to anyone other than the company and the company’s members, as a body, for our audit work, for this
report, or for the opuions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As explamed more fully in the Directors’ Responsibihties Statement set out on page 26, the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for betng satisfied that they give a true and fair view Qur responsibility 1s lo aud the
financial statements 1n accordance with apphcable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards
require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's (APB’s) Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

A description of the scope of an audit of financial statements 1s provided on the APB’s web-site at www frc org uk/apb/scope/UKP

Opinion on financial statements

In our opinion the financial statements
give a true and fair view of the state of the company’s affairs as at 30 September 2009 and of its profit for the year then ended,
have been properly prepared 1n accordance with UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, and

have been prepared 1n accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

Opinion on other matters prescrnibed by the Companies Act 2006
[n our opinion

the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act
2006, and

the imnformation given in the Directors’ Report for the financial yvear for whach the financial statements are prepared 1s consistent
with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report i respect of the following
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion

adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate tor our audit have not been recerved from branches not
visited by us, or

the financial statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited are not in agreement with the
accounting records and returns, or

certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or

we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit

Under the Listing Rules we are requured to review
the directors’ statermnent, set out on page 21, 1n relation to going concern, and
the part of the Corporate Governance Statement relating to the company’s comphance with the mine provisions of the June 2008
Combined Code specified for owi review

Alastair Barbour (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of KPMG Audit Plc, Statutory Auditor

Chartered Accountants
Edinburgh

17 November 2009

27



28

Income Statement

For the year ended 30 September 2009

2009 2008
Revenue Capital Total Revenue Caprital Total
Notes £ ooo £ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £ coo £ coo
Investment holding gains/(losses) - 343 343 - (10,241) (10,241)
Realised {losses) on investments - (152) (i5a) - (105) (105)
Income 2 1,297 - 1,297 2,834 - 2,834
Recoverable VAT 3 68 299 367 1 655 740
Investment management fee 4 (291) (872) (1.163) (350) (1,054 (1,404)
Other expenses 5 (405) - {405) (357 - (357}
Profit/(loss) on erdinary activities before taxation 669 (384} 285 2,212 (10,745) (8.533)
Taxation on ordinary actmities 6 {120) 120 - (544) 544 -
Prefit/(loss) on ordinary activities after taxation 549 (264) 288 1,668 (10,201) (8,533)
Return per ordinary share
Basic 8 0 83p (o g0p) 043p 273p (16 68p) (13 95p)
The “Total’ column of this statement I1s the profit and loss account of the Company
All revenue and capital items 1n this statement derive from continuing operations
No operations were acquired or discontinued in the year
. - - - '
Reconciliation of Movements in Shareholders’ Funds
for the year ended 30 September 2009
009 2008
Ordinary Ordinary
shares shares
Notes 000 £’c00
Opening shareholders’ funds 54,822 68,745
Profitf{loss) for period 285 (8.533)
Purchase of shares for treasury (582) (2,850)
Issue of shares 8,88 1,786
Expenses for share 1ssue/buybacks (a77) (81)
Divtdends paid 7 (1,79) (4,2a5)
Closing shareholders’ funds 61,215 54,822

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements




Balance Sheet

As at 30 September 2009

2009 2008
Notes £'o00 £ ooo
Fixed assets
Investments 9 59,529 50,197
Current assets
Debtors 10 554 1,378
Cash at bank and on deposit 1,684 4,123
2,238 5.501
Creditors {amounts faliing due within one year) n (552) (846)
Net current assets 1,686 4,655
Total assets less current liabilitles 61,215 54,846
Creditors (amounts falling due after one year) 12 - (24)
Net assets 61,115 54,822
Capital and reserves
Called-up share capital 13 7.473 6,504
Share premium account 4 12,573 5135
Capital redemption reserve 14 9,254 9.254
Revaluation reserve 14 1,569 (2,684)
Capntal reserve 14 29,665 36,136
Revenue reserve 14 681 476
Equity shareholders’ funds 15 61,215 54,822
Net asset value per share
- Basic 15 89 06p 91 68p
- Treasury 15 88 13p 91 10p

The financial statements on page

CLIVE A PARKITT FCA

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this balance sheet

0 30 were approved by the Board of Directors on 17 November 2009 and were signed on its behalf by

3
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Cash Flow Statement

As at 30 September 2009

2009 2008
Notes £’000 £ oco

Operating activities
Investment income received 1,300 2,949
Interest received 123 152
Recoverable VAT 1,108 -
Investment management fees (1,134) (1,531)
Other cash payments (439 (358)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 17 964 1,212
Capital expenditure and financial investment
Purchases of investments {75.075) (32,122)
Disposals of investments 65,885 38,917
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from capital expenditure
and financial investment (9.190) 6,795
Dividends
Equity dividends paid (Lna) (4,251)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow before financing (9,940) 3,756
Financing
Issue of shares 8,886 1,786
Expenses of the 1ssue of shares and buybacks (461) (60)
Buy-back of ordinary shares (924) {2,526}
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from financing 7.501 (800)
{Decrease)/increase in cash Iin the year (2,439 2,956
Opening cash position 4,123 1,167
Closing cash position 1,684 4,123

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement



Notes to the Accounts

1 Accounting policies

(a) Basis of accounting

These financial statements have been prepared under UK
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (LIK GAAP) and on the
assumption that the Company mamtamns VCT status

The Company 15 no longer an investment Company as defined by
Section 833 of the Compantes Act 2006, as 1nvestment Company
status was revoked on 10 March 2003 1n order to pernut the
distributron of capital profits

The principal accounting policies adopted are set out below
Where presentational guidance set out in the Statement of
Recommended Practice (""SORP”) for investment trusts 1ssued by
the Association of Investment Companies (“AIC’) 1n January
2003, revised January 2009, 1s consistent with the requirements
of UK GAAP, the Directors have sought to prepare the financtal
statements on a basis comphant with the recommendations of
the SORP

Presentation of the Income Statement

In order to better reflect the achvities of a VCT and 1n accordance
with the SORP, supplementary information which analyses the
mcome statement between items of a revenue and capital nature
has been presented alongside the income statement Nel Revenue
15 the measure the Directors behieve appropriate 1n assessing the
Company’s compliance with certain requirements set out n
Section 274 of the Income Tax Act 2007

(b) valuation of investments

Purchases or sales of investments are recognrsed at the date of
transaction

Investiments are valued at fair value For AIM traded and hsted
securities this 15 either bid price or the last traded price, depending
on the convention of the exchange on which the investment 15
quoted

In respect of unquoted investments, these are farr valued by
the Directors using methodology which 1s consistent with the
International Private Equrty and Venture Capttal (IPEVC)
guidelines  This means tnvestments are valued using an
earnings multiple, which has a discount or premium applied
which adjusts for points of difference to appropriate stock
market or comparable transaction multiples Alternative
methods of valuation will include application of an arm’s
length third party valuation, a provision on cost or a net asset
value basis

Gains and losses ansing from changes m the far value of the
investments are included 1n the Income Statement for the period
as a capital item Transaction costs on acquisitton are included
within the mihial recogttion and the profit or loss on disposal 15
calculated net of transachion costs on disposal

(¢) Income

Interest income on loan stock and dividends on preference shares
are accrued on a daily basis Provision 1s made aganst this
income where recovery s doubtful Where the terms of

unquoled lean stocks only require mterest to be pad on
redemplion, the interest 15 recogmised as 1ncome once redemption
15 reasonably certain Until such date interest 15 accrued datly and
included within the valuation of the investment

Income from fixed interest securities and deposit interest 1s
included on an effective mnterest rate basis

Drvidends on quoted shares are recogntsed as mcome on the date
that the related investments are marked ex dividend and where
no dividend date 15 quoted, when the Company’s right to receive
payment 1s established

(d) Expenses

All expenses are recorded on an accruals basis

(e) Revenue/capitat

The reventue column of the income statement 1ncludes all income
and expenses The capital column accounts for the realised and
unrealised profit and less on mvestments and the proportion of
management fee charged to captal

(f) Issue costs

[ssue costs are deducted from the share premium account

(g) Deferred taxavon

Deferred taxation 1s recognised i respect of all tming differences
that have onginated but not reversed at the balance sheet date
where transactions or events that result 1n an obligation to pay
more, or the rght to pay less, tax in future have occurred at the
balance sheet date This 1s subject to deferred tax assets only
being recogrused if 1t 15 considered more hikely than not that there
will be surtable profits from which the future reversal of the
underlying timing differences can be deducted Timing
ditferences are differences ansing between the Company’s taxable
profits and 1ts results as statud 1n the financial statements which
are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods

{h) Capitat reserves
(1} Caputal Reserve

Gains and losses on reabisation of investments of a capital
nature are dealt with 1n this reserve  Purchase of the
Company’s own shares to be either held m treasury or
cancelled are also funded from this reserve 75% of
management fees are allocated to the captal reserve n
accordance with the Board's expected split between long
term mcome and capital returns

() Revaluation Reserve

Changes 1n fair value of investments, are dealt with in
this reserve

3
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Notes to the Accounts

2 Income
2009 2008
£'o00 £ 000
Income from investmentst
UK franked 208 334
UK unfranked 896 1,987
Redempuion premium Pl 358
1,182 2,670
Other income#
Interest 115 155
Total income 1,297 2,834
Total income comprises
Drvidends 208 334
Interest 1,080 2,500
1,297 2,834
Income from investments
Listed and AIM securities 453 1,050
Unquoted securities 729 1,629
1,182 2,679

tall investments have been designated far value through profit or loss on initial recognition, therefore all investment income anses on

investments at fair value through profit or loss

#0ther income on finanoial assets not designated fair value through profit or loss

3 Recoverable VAT

HM Revenue and Customs (HMRC) confirmed in October 2007, following the European Court of Justice deciston 1n the JPMorgan

Claverhouse case, that the provision of management services to investment trusts 1s exempt from VAT Accordingly ISIS EP LLP

ceased to charge VAT on management fees payable by the Company with effect from 30 June 2008

During the year to 30 September 2009 an amount of £367,000 (2008 £740,000) recovered VAT has been recogrused as a separate

ttem m the mcome statement, allocated between revenue and capital return in the same proportion as that i wlich the

rrecoverable VAT was origmally charged Interest relating te the VAT claim amounting to £93,000 has also been recognised

this perod



Notes to the Accounts

4 Investment management fee

2009 2008

£'o00 f'a00

Investment management fee 1,163 1,404
performance fee - -
1,163 1,404

For the purposes of the revenue and capital columns m the mcome staternent, the management fee (including VAT) has been
allocated 25 per cent to revenue and 75 per cent to capital, in hne with the Board's expected long term return m the form of
mcome and capital gains respectively from the Company’s mnvestment portfolio

The management agreement may be terntnated by aither party grving 12 months’ notice of termination The Manager, ISIS EP
LLP, receives a fee of 2 per cent per annum of the net assets of the Company, calculated and payable on a quarterly basis

The Manager 15 entitled to a performance fee if at the end of any calculation period, the total return on shareholders’ funds,
calculated on a compound basis, exceeds the threshold of UK base rate plus 2 per cent on shareholders’ funds The Manager was
entitled to 20 per cent of the excess prior to 31 March 2007 and will be entitled to 16 66 per cent to 31 March 2008, 13 33 per
cent to 31 March 2009, and 10 per cent thereafter The amount of any performance fee which 1s pard 1n respect of a calculation
period shall be capped at 5 per cent of shareholders’ funds at the end of the period

ISIS EP LLP recewves an annual secretarial and accounting fee of £39,420 (adjusted annually for movements mn the Retail Prices
Index} and a varable fee of 0 125% on net assets over £5,000,000 subject to annual review The secretarial and accounting fee 1s
up to a maximum of £114,000 per annum (adjusted annually for movements m the UK Retail Prices Index) It 15 chargeable 100

per cent to revenue

Amounts payable to the Manager at the pertod end are disclosed 1n note 11

5 Other expenses

2009 2008

£'o00 £ ooo
Directors’ fees 63 63
Secretanal and accounting fee 108 126
Remuneration of the auditors and their asscciates
- audit 22 20
- other services supplied pursvant to legistation (Interim review) 5 4
- other services supplied relating to taxation 5 6
Trail Commussion (13) -
Other 215 1328

405 357

The Charrman recerved £21,000 per annum (2008 £21,000) Each of the other Directors recerved £14,000 per annum (2008
£14,000)

The Audit Comimuttee reviews the nature and extent of non-audit services to ensure that independence 15 mamtained The Directors
consider that the auditors were best placed to provide such services

All higures mclude irrecoverable VAT, where applicable The Company 15 not registered for VAT
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Notes to the Accounts

6a Tax on ordinary activities

UK corporation tax - -

The income statement shows the tax charge allocated between revenue and capital

6b Factors affecting tax charge for the year
The tax charge for the period 1s lower than the standard rate of corporatton tax in the UK for a company The differences are
explmned below

2009 2008*

Reverue Capital Total Revenue Capital Total

£'000 £ voo 000 £’o00 E ooo £ ooo

profit/{loss) on ordmary activities before taxation 669 (384) 285 2,212 (10,745) (8,533)

Corporation tax at 28% 187 (108) 79 641 (3,116) (2.475)
Effect of

Non-taxable dividend ncome (58) - (s3) (97} - {57

Non-taxable (gains)/losses - (53) (s3) - 3,000 3,000

Losses carried forward/(utiised) - 32 32 - - -

Marginal tax relief (9 9 - - - -

Tax charge/(credit) for the year 120 (120) - 544 (544) -

*Blended rate of 29%

Al 30 September 2009 the Company had surplus management expenses of £1,636,459 (30 September 2008 £1,527,525) which
have not been recognised as a diferred tax asset Thus 1 bucause the Company 1s not expected to generate taxable income 1n a
future period tn excess of the duductible expenses of that future perzod and, accordingly, the Company 15 unlikely to be able to
reduce future tax habhities through the use of extshing surplus expenses Due to the Companv's status as a VCT, and the intention
to continue meeting the condrtions required to obtain approval in the foreseeable future, the Company has not provided deferrad
lax on any capital gains and losses ansing on the revaluation or disposal of investments

7 Dividends
2009 2008
Revenue Capital Total Revenue Capital Total
£'000 E voo E‘o00 E'ooo £ 000 E coo
Amounts recognised as distributions to eguity
holders in the year/period
For the year ended 30 September 2009
- First interim dividend of 2 5p per ordinary share
paid on 26 June 2009 344 1,370 1,714 - - -
Amounts recognised as distributions to equity
holders 1n the year/period
For the year ended 30 September 2008
- First interim dividend of 3 op per ordinary share
paid on 20 |une 2008 - - - 1,102 735 1,837
- Second intenm dividend of 4 op per ordinary share
paid on 30 September 2008 - - - 602 1,806 2,408
344 1.37¢ 1,774 1,704 2,541 4,245

8 Returns per share

The 0 43p return per ordinary share (2008 (13 95)p loss per ordmary share) 15 based on the net profit from ordinary activaties
after tax of £285,000 (2008 (£8,533,000) loss tor the ordinary shares) and on 65,802,901 ordinary shares (2008 61,138,930),

bung the weighted average number of shares in 1ssue during the period



Notes to the Accounts

9 Investments

All mnvestments are destgnated far value through profit or loss at imitial recogmtion, therefore all gamns and losses arise on

mvestments designated at fair value through profit or loss Given the nature of the Company’s investments the fair value gains

recognised 1 these financial statements are not considered to be readily convertible to cash in full at the balance sheet date and

therefore the movement 1n these fair values 1s treated as unrealised

2009 2008

£ o00 £'000

Listed Investments 1,019 558

Interest bearing secunties 18,512 9,486

Collective investment vehicle 525 -

Investments traded on AIM 11,930 13,002

Investments traded on NYSE 212 -

Investments traded on PLUS 109 95

Unguoted investments 27,222 27,050

59,529 50,197

Equity shares 21,724 20,541

Preference shares 97 59

Loan notes 19,196 20,105

Fixed income securities 18,512 5,486

59,529 50,191

Interest Collective
Traded bearing  Investment Traded Traded

on NYSE Lsted securities vehicle on AlM on PLUS Unquoted Tetal

E 000 £’oo0 £ 6o £ ooo £ 000 £ voo £ oco t voo

Opening book cost - 578 9,486 - 21,003 500 21,238 52,875

Opening unrealised appreciation/(depreciation) - (20) - - (8,071} (405) 5,812 (2,684)

Opening valuatien - 558 9,486 - 13,002 95 27,050 50,191
Movements n the year

Purchases at cost 180 - 72,631 [¥1 1,152 - 595 75,083

Sales - proceeds - - (63,579 - (1,538) - 817  (65.934)

- realised gans/(losses) on sales - - - - 73 - {227} (154)

Unrealised (losses) realised during the year - - - - (3,674) - (236) (3,910)

Increase/(decrease) in unrealised appreciation 32 461 (26) - 2,915 14 857 4,253

Clesing valuation 212 1,019 18,512 525 11,930 109 27,222 59,529

Clesing book cost 18c 578 18,538 525 17,086 500 20,553 57.960

Closing unrealised appreciationf{depreciation) 32 aa1 (26) - {5,156) (391) 6,669 1,569

212 1,019 18,512 525 11,930 109 27,222 56,520

During the peried the Company incurred broKerage costs on sales and purchases of £5,338 (2008 £5,720)

An analysts of matenal sales durning the penod 1s disclosed 1n the Manager’s Review on page 9
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Notes to the Accounts

10 Debtors

2009 2008

f coo f ovo
Amounts due from brokers mnm 222
Prepayments and accrued (ncome 283 416
Other debtors - 740

554 1,378
11 Creditors (amounts falling due within one year)

2009 2008

froo0 £ ooo
Amounts due to brokers 125 454
Management and secretarial and accounting fees due to the Manager 336 306
Other creditors 91 86

552 846
12 Creditors (amounts falling due after one year)

2009 2008

f'oo0 £ ooo
Trail commission payable - 24

- 24
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13 Called-up share capnal

£ 000

Authorised
191,238,250 ordinary shares of 1op each 19,124
2,752,350 C shares of sop each 1,376

20,500
Allotted, called-up and fully pard
Ordinary shares
65,036,015 ordinary shares of 10p each listed at 30 September 2008 6,504
9,604,179 ordinary shares of 10p 1ssued dunng the perod 969
74,730,194 ordinary shares of 10p each listed at 30 September 2009 7,473
5,241,770 ordinary shares of 10p each held in treasury at 30 September 2008 (524)
752,136 ardinary shares of 1op each repurchased dunng the penod and held in treasury (75)
5,993,906 ordinary shares of 1op each held in treasury at 30 September 2009 (599)
68,736,288 ordinary shares of 10p each in i1ssue at 30 September 2009 6,874

As at 17 November 2009 the Company’s tssued share capital was 74,730,194 ordinary shares and the number of voting shares
was 68,736,288 Ordinary Shares carrying one vote each

Treasury shares

The Companies (Acquusition of Own Shares) (Treasury Sharcs) Regulations 2003 came mto force on 1 December 2003 and allowed
the Company te hold shares acquired by way of market purchase as treasury shares, rather than having to cancel them Up to
ten per cent of each class of a Company’s shares may be held in thus way Shareholders have previously approved a resolution
permutting the Company to 1ssue shares from treasury al a discount to the prevaiing NAV 1f the Board considers 1t in the best
inlerests of the Company to do so However, treasury shares will not be sold at a discount wader than the discount prevaihng at
the time the shares were imtially bought back by the Company It 1s the Board’s intention only to use the mechamsm of re-1ssuing
treasury shares when demand for the Company’s shares 1s greater than the supply available in the market place Such 1ssues
would be captured under the lerms of the Prospectus Direclive and sulyect to the annual cap of Euro 2 5 million on funds rased
before requiring a full prospectus, although they would not he considered by HM Revenue & Customs to be new shares entitling
the purchascr to tmitial income tax rehef, and therefore shares are unlikely to be 1ssued from treasury 1n the same year as a “'top
up” offer for subscription
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14 Reserves
Capital

Share redemptian Capital Revaluation Revenue
premiurm reserve reserve reserve reserve
E coo £ ooo £ ooo f aoo £ 000
At 1 October 2008 5,135 9,264 26,136 (2,684) 476
Premium on i1ssue of ordinary shares 7.913 - - - -
Expenses of share i1ssue and buybacks (475) - (2) - -
Shares bought back - - (582) - -
Reallocation of prior year unreahised gans and losses - - (3.910) 3,910 -
Net increase 1n value of investments - - - 343 -
Realised on disposal of investments - - (154) - -
Management fee capitalised net of associated 1ax - - (872) - -
Revenue return on ordinary actimities after tax - - - - 549
Dividends recognised in the period - - (1,370) - (344)
Recoverable VAT - - 209 - -
Taxation - ~ 120 - -
At 30 September 2009 12,573 9,254 29,665 1,569 681

Al 30 September 2009, distributable reserves by way of dividend amounted to £30,346,000 (2008 £36,612,000), comprising the

capital reserve and the revenue reserve

Addit:onal distmbutable reserves by way of dividend from traded, listed and interest bearing securities amounted to £447,000

(2008 mil)

15 Net asset value per share

The net asset value per share and the net asset values attrmbutable to the ordinary shares at the period end are calculated 1n

accordance with their entitlements in the Articles of Association and were as follows

Number of shares

Net asset value
per share attnbutable

Net asset value attributable

2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

number pence pence E'oo0 £ ooo

Ordinary shares (basic) 50,754,245 89 06 91 68p 61,215 54,822
Ordinary shares {treasury) 65,036,015 8813 91 10p 65,861 58,018

Basic et asset value per share 1s based on net assets at the period end, and on 68,736,288 (2008 59,794,245) ordinary shares,

bemng the respective number of shares i 15sue at the period end

The Treasury net asset value per share as at 30 September 2009 included ordinary shares held i treasury valued at the mud share

price of 84p at 30 September 2009

16 Analysis of changes in cash

2009 2008
£ co0 f'o00
Beginning of year 4,123 1,167
Net cash (outflow)/inflow (2,439) 2,956
End of period 1,684 4,123
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17 Reconcihation of profit/(loss) on ordinary activities before taxation to net cash inflow from operating activities

1009 2008

£ ooo £ ooo
Profit/(loss) on ordinary activities before taxation 285 (8,533)
(Gains)/losses 1n investments (189) 10,346
Decrease/(increase) in debtors 870 (465)
(Decrease)/icrease 1n creditors (2) (136)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 964 1,212

18 Contingencies, guarantees and financial commitments

There were no contingencies, guarantees or financial commitments of the Company as at 30 September 2009 (30 September 2008

ml)

19 Significant interests

There are no interests of 20% or more of any class of share captal

Further information on the sigmficant interests 1s disclosed on pages 10 and 11

20 Financial instruments and associated risks

The Company’s financral instruments comprise equuty and fixed interest investments, cash balances and hquid resources The
Company holds financial assets in accordance with its investment policy to tnvest tn a diverse portfolto of estabhished and profitable

LK unquoted companies and companes raising new share capital on AIM

Fixed asset investments held (see note 9) are valued at fair value For quoted securities this 1s either bid price or the last traded
price, depending on the convention of the exchange on which the investment 15 quoted [n respect of unquoted tvestments, these
are farr valued by the Directors (using miles consistent with IPCVC gurdelines) The fair value ot alt other financial assets and
hiabthties 15 represented by their carrying value i the Balance sheet

The Company's investing achivities expose it to various types of risk that are asseciated with financral mstruments and markets n
whuch 1t mvests The most important types of financial nisk to which the Company 1s exposed are market risk, credil risk and
hquidity risk The nature and extent of the financal instruments outstanding at the balance sheet date and the risk management
policies employed by the Company are discussed 11 notes 21 to 24
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21 Market nsk

Market risk embodies the potential for both loss and gamns and 1includes interest rate risk and price nsk

The Company’s strategy on the management of investment risk ts driven by the Companv’s investment objective as outlined m
note 20 The management of market nisk 1s part of the mvestment management process and s typical of private equity
mvestment The portfolio 1s managed 1n accordance with policies and procedures 1n place as described in more detail in the Report
of the Directors on page 17 to 22, with an awareness of the effects of adverse price movements through detmled and continuing
analysis, with an objective of maxzmising overall returns to shareholders Investments in unquotid stocks and AIM traded
companies, by their nature, involve a higher degree of nsk than mvestments m the main market Some of that risk can be
rmitigated by dwversifying the portfolio across business sectors and asset classes The Company’s overall market positions are
monttored by the Board on a quarterly hasis

Details of the Company’s investment portfolio at the balance sheet date are disclosed in the schedule of investments set out on
pages 10 and 11 An analysis of investments between dibt and equuty instruments 1s disclosed 1n note

22 per cent (2008 25 per cent) of the Company’s mvestments are histed on the London or New York Stock Exchange or traded on
AIM A 5 per cent increase mn stock prices as at 30 September 2009 would have increased the net assets attributable to the
Company s sharcholders and the total profit for the year by £664,000 (2008 £683,000), an equal change 1n the opposite
direction would have decreased the net assets altributable to the Company’s shareholders and the total profit for the year by an

equal amount

44 per cent (2008 49 per cent) of the Company’s mvestments are in unquoted compames held al fmr value Valuation
methedology includes the application of earnings multiples derived from either ltsted companies with stmilar charactenistics or
recent comparable transactions Therefore the value of the unquoted element of the portfolio may also be indirectly affected by
price movements on the listed exchanges A 5 per cent increase 1n the valuations of unquoted investments at 30 September 2009
woulld have increased the net assets attributable to the Company's shareholders and the total profit for the year by £1,361,000
(2008 £1,353,000), an equal change n the opposite direction would have decreased the net assets attributable to the Company's
shareholders and the total profit for the year by an equal amount
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22 interest rate fisk

Al 30 September 2009 £11,512,000 {2008 £rl) fixed rate secunties were held by the Company As a result, the Company 15
sulbyect to exposure to fair value interest rate risk due to fluctuations in the prevating levels of market interest rates

At 30 Septembir 2009 £19,196,000 (2008 £19,872,000) fixed rate loan notes were held by the Company The werghted average
effective 1nterest rate for the loan note securities 1s 8 79% as at 30 September 2009 (2008 9 30%) Due to complexity of the
mstruments and uncertainty surrounding timing of redemption the weighted average time for which the rate 15 fixed has not been

calculated

The table below summanses weighted average cffective mterest rates for the fixed interest-bearing financual instruments

2009 2008
Weighted Weighted
Total Weighted average Fotal Weighted average
fixed average time for fixed average tme for
rate interest which rate rate interest which rate
portfolio rate is fixed portfolio rate 15 fixed
E’oco % days f'o00 kS days
Fixed rate
Fixed interest secunties 1,512 102 31 - - -

Floating rate

When the Company retains cash balances, the majority of cash 1s ordinarily held on interest bearing deposit accounts and, where
appropnate, within an interest bearing money market open ended investment company (OEIC) The benchmark rate with
determines the mterest payments recetved on nterest bearing cash balances 1s the bank base rate which was 0 5 per cent as at

30 September 2009 (2008 5 00 per cent)

1000 2008
E ooo f coo
floating rate
QEIC 7,000 9,486
Cash on deposit 1,684 4,123
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23 Credit risk

Credtt risk 15 the rsk that a counterparty to a finanaal instrument will fail to discharge an obligabion or comnutment that it has
entered into with the Company The Investment Manager has tn place a momtoring procedure 1n respect of counterparty nsk
which ts reviewed on an ongoing basts The carrying amounts of finanaal assets best represents the maxumum credit sk exposure
at the halance sheet date

At the riporting date, the Company’s financial assets exposed to eredit nsk amounted to the following

2009 2008

t'o00 {'000

Investments in floating rate nstruments 7,000 9,486
Cash and cash equivalents 1,684 4,123
Interest, dividends and other receivables 283 416
8,967 14,025

Credit nsk ansing on fixed mterest instruments 1s mitigated by mvesting mn UK Government Stock

Credit risk ansing on floating rate instruments 1s mitigated by investing 11 a money market open ended investment company
managed by Blackrock Credit risk on unquoted loan stock held within unhisted investments 1s considered to be part of market risk
as disclosed 1 note 21

Credit nsk arising on transactions with brokers relates {o transactions awaiting settlement Risk relating to unsettled transactions
1s considered to be small due to the short settlement pertod involved and the high credit quality of the brokers used The Board
monitors the quality of service provided by the brokers used to further mitigate this risk

All assets of the Company winch are traded on a recognised exchange are held by JPMorgan Chase (JPM), the Company’s
custodian The Board momtors the Company’s risk by revicwing the custodian’s internal control reperts as described 1n the
Corporate Governance section on page 25

Substantially all of the cash hdd by the Company 1s hdld by JPM The Board montors the Company’s risk by reviewing regularly
JPM’s internal control reports as previously described Should the credit quality or the finanaal position of JPM detertorate
significantly the Investment Manager will seek to move the cash holdings to another bank

There were no stgmificant concentrations of credit risk to counterparties at 30 Scplember 2009 or 30 September 2008 No
indridual investment exceeded 11 5 per cent of the net assets attributable to the Company’s sharcholders at 30 September 2009
(2008 8 7 per cent)
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24 Liquidity risk

The Company’s financial mstruments incddude investments i unquoted compames which are not traded 1n an orgamsed public
market as well as AIM traded equity investments both of which generally may be tliquuid As a result, the Company may not be
able to iquidate quuickly some of 1ts investments 1n these instruments al an amount close to ther fair value 1n erder to meet 1ts

lrgquachty requurements, or to respond to specific events such as deterioration in the creditworthiness of any particular ssuer

The Company's quidity risk 15 managed on an ongoing basis by the Investment Manager 1n accordance with pohicies and
procedures as described 1 the Report of the Direclors on page 18 The Company’s overall hquudity risks are monttored on a
quarterly basis by the Board

The Company mamntains sufficrent mnvestments m cash and readily realisable securities to pay accounts payable and accrued
expenses At 30 September 2009 these investments were valued at £20,196,211 (2008 £13,608,628}

25 Related panties

Related party transactions include Management, Secretarial, Accounting and Performance fees payable to the Manager, ISIS EP LLP,
as disclosed 1n notes 4, 5 and 11, and fees paid to the Directors as disclosed in note 5 In addition, the Manager operales a Co-
Investment Scheme, detathud 1n the Report of the Directors on page 21, whereby employees of the Manager are entitled to
participate mn certain unquoled mvestments alongside the Company
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

Nofice 1s hereby given that the twelfth Annual General Meeting of Baronsmead VCT 2 ple (*‘the Company”’) will be
held at the London Stock Exchange, 10 Paternoster Square, London EC4M 7LS, on 14 December 2009 at 11 00 am for
the purposes of considering and, 1f thought fit, passing the following resolutions

Ordinary business

1

[ =]

= ~ St h W

To recerve the Report and Financial Statements tor the year ended 30 September 2009
To declare a final dividend of 3 Op per ordinary share

To approve the Directors’ Remuneration Report for the year ended 30 September 2009
To re-elect Mr G Jllings as a Director

To re-elect Mrs G Nott as a Drirector

To re-elect Mr C A Parntt as a Director

To elect Mr H Goldring as a Director

To re-appoint KPMG Audit Ple as the Independent Auditors and to authorise the Directors to determine ther remuneration

Special Business

Q

10

11

THAT

n substitution for all subsisting autherities to the extent unused the Directors of the Company {the “‘Directors”) be and are
hereby generally and unconditionally authorised in accordance with section 551 of the Compames Act 2006 (the “Act”), to
exercise all the powers of the Company to allot shares in the Company and to grant nghts Lo subscribe for or to convert any
security mto shares in the Company up to an aggregate nominal amount of £2,062,089 during the pertod commencing on the
passing of this reselution and expiring on the fifth anmversary of the date of the passing of this resolution {unless previously
revoked, varled, renewed or extended by the Company 1n general meeting), but so that this authonty shall allow the Company
to make before the expiry of this authority ofters or agreements which would or mught require shares to be allotted or rights
to be granted after such expiry

THAT subject to the passing of resolution 9 set out n the notice of this meeting

the Directors of the Company (the ‘Directors’) be and are hereby empowered, pursuant to secttons 570 and 573 of the

Companies Act 2006 (the ‘Act’), to allot equity securities as defined 1n Section 560 of the Act for cash pursuant to the

authorities give, pursuant to resolution 9 set out 1n the notrce of this meding or by way of a sale of treasury shares, as it

section 5671(1) of the Act did not apply to any such allotment, provided that this power shall be hmted to

(1) the allotment of equuty sccurtties up to an aggregate nominal amount of £687,363, provided that the maximum number
of ordinary shares which may be allotted pursuant to paragraph (a) shall be 6,873,630 ordinary shares, pursuant to a
dividend remvestment scheme operated by the Company, and

(b} the allotment of equuty securtties (otherwise than pursuant to sub-paragraph {a) above) up to an aggregate nominal
amount of £1,374,726 provided that the maximum number of ordmary shares which may be allotted pursuant to this
sub-paragraph shall be 13,747,260 ordinary shares, and where such proceeds of 1ssue may be used, 1n whole or part, to
purchase ordinary shares,

the power conferred by this resolution shall expire on the date falling 15 months after the date of the passing of this
resolution or, 1if earhier, at the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting of the Company te be held in 2010, except that
the Company may, before such expiry, make offers or agreements wiuch would or might require equuty securities to be
allotted after such expiry and the directors shall be entriled to allot equnty sccunties pursuant to any such offers or
agreements as 1f the power conferred by this resolution had not «xpircd

THAT the Company be and hereby 15 empowered to make market purchases within the meamng of Section 693(4) of the
Compares Act 2006 ('the Act”’) of ordinary shares of 10p each n the capatal of the Company (‘Ordmnary Shares’) provided
that

(a) the aggregate number of Ordinary Shares which may be purchased shall not exceed 10,303,569 or 1if lower such number
of Ordinary Shares as shall equal 14 99 per cent of the 1ssued Ordinary Shares as at the date of such purchase (excluding
any Ordinary Shares held in treasury),

(b) the mummum price which may be pad for an Ordinary Share 1s the nominal value thereof of 10 pence,

{c) the maximum price which may be paid for an Ordinary Share 1s an amount equal to the lugher of (1) 105 per cent of the
average of the muddle market quotation for an Ordinary Share taken from the London Stock Exchange daily official hst for
the five business days immediately preceding the day on which such Ordmary Share 1s to be purchased, and (1) the
ameunt strpulated by Article 5(1) of the Buyback and Stabihsatton Regulation 2003
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(dy the authority conferred by this Resolution shall expire on 14 March 2011 or, if earlier, the conclusion of the annual
general meeting to be held 1n 2010 unless such authority 1s renewed prior to such time, and

(¢) the Company may make a contract to purchase Ordinary Shares under the authority conferred by this Resolution prior to
the expiry of such authority which will or may be exccuted wholly or partly after the exprration of such authority and
may make a purchase of such Ordinary Shares

THAT
12 (a) the Articles of Assoctation of the Company be amended by deleting all the provistons of the Company’s Memorandum of
Assoctation which, by virtue of section 28 of the Companies Act 2006, are to be treated as provisions of the Company's
Articles of Association, and
(b) the Articles of Assoctation contamed in the document produced to the meeting and wrutialled by the Chairman for the
purposes of identification be adopted as the new Articles of Asscciation of the Company mn substitution for, and to the
exclusion of, the existing articles of association, with effect from the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting

13 THAT, sulycct to the adoption of the new articles of association of the Company by the passing of Resolution 12 as set out n
the notice of this mecting, a general meeting (other than an annual gencral meeting) may be called on not less than 14 clear
days’ nolice, provided that this authority shall expire at the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company

By Order of the Board

P M Forster
Secretary

100 Wood Street
London EC2V 7AN
17 November 2009
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Notes to Notice of Annual General Meeting

No Director has a service contract with the Company

To be entitled to attend and vote at the meeting (and for the purposes of the determination by the Company of the votes they may cast),
Members must be registered in the Register of Members of the Company at 11 00 am on 12 December 2009 (or, 1n the event of any
adyeurnment, 11 00 am on the date which 15 two days before the fime of the adjourned meeting) Changes to the Register of Members of the
Company after the relovant deadline shall be disregarded in determming the rights of any persen to attuud and vote at the meeting

A mumber entitled to attend and vote at the meeting 15 entitled to appuint a proxy or proxies to attend, speak and vote on his or her behalf

A proxy need not also be a member, but must attend the meeting to represent you Details of how to appomt the Chairman of the meeting or
another person as your proay using the proxy form are set out in the notes to the proxy form If you wish your proxy to speak en vour
behalf at the meeting you will need to appoint your own choice of proxy tnot the Chairman) and give your tnstructions directly to them

To appoint more than one proxy, an addibonal proxy formi{s) may be obtamed by contacting the Company's registrars Computershare
Investor Services PLC, helpline on 0870 703 0137 or you may photocopy the proxy form Please indicate in the box next to the proxy holder’s
name, the number of shares mn relation to which they are authortsed to act as your proxy Please also indicate by ticking the box provided, 1if
the proxy mnstruction 1s one of multiple instructions being given All forms must he signed and should be returned together in the same
envelope

A reply paid torm of proxy 1s enclosed with Sharcholders’ copies of this decument To be valid, 1t should be lodged with the Company's
registrars, Computershare [Investor Services PLC, The Pavilions, Bridgwater Road, Bristol BS99 6ZY so as to be recerved not later than 48 hours
before the time appointed for the meeting or any adjourned meeting or, 1n the case of a poll taken subsequent to the date of the meeting or
adjourned meeting, so as to he recerved no later than 24 hours before the ime appomnted for taking the poll

In order to facilitate voting by corporate representatives at the meeting, arrangements wall be put in place at the meeting so that (1) if a
corporate sharcholder has appointed the Charman of the meeting as its corporate representative with instruchions to vote on a poll in
accordance with the directions of all of the other cerporate representatives for that shareholder at the meeting then on a poll these corporate
representatives will give voting directions to the Chairman and the Chairman will vote {or withhold a vete) as corporate ropresentative in
accordance with those direchions  and () if more than one corporate representative for the same vorporate shareholder has not appointed the
Charrman of the meeting as 1ts corporate representative, a designated corporate representative will be neminated, from those corporate
representatives who attend who will vete on a poll and the other corporate representatives will give vohing directions to that designated
corporate representative Corporate sharcholders are referred to the gundance 1ssued by the Institute of Chartered Secretames and Administrators
on proxtes and corporate representatives — www 1csa org uk — for further details of thus procedure The gurdance includes a sample form of
representation letter if the Chairman 1s being appointdd as described mn (1) above

Appomtment of a proxy will not preclude a member from subsequently attending and voting at the meeting should he or she subsequently
decrie to do so You can only appoint a proxy using the procedures set out in these notes and the notes to the proxy form

Any person recerving a copy of this Nohice as a person nominated by a member to enyoy information rights under sectton 146 of the Comparues
Act 2006 (a 'Normmated Person ) should note that the provisions in Notes 3 and 4 above concermng the appointment ot a proxy or proxes to
attend the meehing in place of a member do not apply to a Noomnated Person as only Sharcholders have the night to appoint a proxy However,
a Nomunated Person may have a night under an agreement between the Nomunated Person and the member by whom he or she was normnated
to be appointed, or to have someone else appomted, as a proxy for the meehng If a Nomunated Person has no such proxy appointment right or
does not wish to exerase it, he/she may have a nght under such an agreement to give mstruchons to the member as to the exercise of voting
nghts at the meeting

Nominated persons should also remember that their man point of contact n terms of ther investment 1n the Company remamns the member
whiio nominated the Nominated Person to empoy information rights (or, perhaps the custodian or broker who admimsters the investment on
their behalf) Nominated Persons should continue to contact that member, custodian or broker (and not the Company) regarding any changes
or quencs relating to the Nominated Person’s personal details and mterest in the Company {(including any admuistrative mattery The only
exception to this 1s where the Company expressly requests a response from a Nominated Person

CREST members who wish to appoint a proxy or proaces by utilising the CREST electromie proxy appowmntment service may do so for the
meeting and any adjournment(s} thereof by utihsing the procedures described in the CREST manual, wiuch 1s available to download from the
Luroclear website (www curoclear com/CREST) CRLST personal members or other CREST sponsored members, and those CREST members who
have appomnted a voting survice provider(s), should refer to thar CREST sponsor or voting servive provider(s), who will be able to take the
appropnate achon on thar behalf

In order for a proxy appeintment made by means of CREST to be valid, the appropriate CREST message (@ * CREST Proxy [nstruction ) must be
properly authenticated in accordance with Eurodear UK & Ireland Lumted’s speaifications and must contam the information requured for such
mstructions  as described i the CREST manual The message must be transmuitted so as to be recerved by the Issuer’s agent (10 RA19) by the
latest time for receipt of proxy appomtments specified in note 6 above For this purpose, the tme of receipt will be taken to be the tume (as
determmuned by the imestamp applied to the message by the CREST appliations host) from which the 1ssuers agent 15 able to retrieve the
message by enquury to CRL5T 1in the manner prescribed by CREST

CREST members and, whiere applicable, their CREST sponsors or voting service provider(s) should note that Luroclear UK & lrcland Limited does
not make available special procedures m CREST for any particular messages Normal system timungs and hmitations will therefore apply in
relaton to the mput of CREST Proxy Instructions It 1s the responsibility of the CREST member concerndd to take {or, 1t the CREST member s a
CREST personal member or sponsored member or has appointed a voting service provader(s), to procure that his CREST sponsor or voting
service provider(s) tahe(s)} such action as shall be necessary to ensure that a message 1s transmitted by means of the CREST system by any
partiwular time In this connection, CREST sponsors or voting service providers are referred, in particular to those sechons of the CREST manual
concermung prachical muitations of the CREST system and bimings

The Company may treat as mvalil a CREST Proay Instruction in the urcumstances set out in Regulation 33(3) of the Uncertificated Securtties
Regulations 2001

As at 17 November 2009 the Company’s ssued share capital consists of 74 730,194 Ordinary shares The total numisr of votes in the
Company 15 68 736,288

Accopy of the Notice of Annual General Meeting and the information requured by Section 311A Comparues Act 2006 s included on the
Company’s website wiww baronsmeadvet2 co uh

Section 319A of the Companies Act 2006 requires the directors to answer any question rawsed at the AGM which, relates to the business of the
meeting, although ne answer need be given (a} if to do so would mterfere unduly with the preparation of the meeting or nvolve disclosure of
confidential information (b} if the answer has already been given on the Company s website, or (¢} iof it 1s undesirable in the best interests of
the Company or the good order of the meeting

Members satisfying the thresholds m section 527 of the Companies Act 2006 can require the Company to publish a statement on its website
setting out any matter relating to (a) the audit of the Company’s accounts (incJuding the auditor’s report and the conduct ot the audit) that are
to be laxd before the annual general meeting, or (b) any arcumstances connected with an auditor of the Company ceasing to hold office since
the last Annual General Meeting, that the members propose to raise at the meeting The Company cannot require the members requesting the
publication to pay its expenses, Any statement requured to be placed on the website must also be sent to the Company’s auditors no later than
the time 1t makes 1ts statement available on the website The business which may be dealt with at the meeting ncludes any statement that the
Company has been required to publish on 1ts wibsite

By attending the meeting, members and thew proxies and representatives are understood by the Company to have agreed to receve any
commumcabions relabing to the Company’s shares made at the meeting




Explanatory notes of principal changes to the
Company’s Articles of Association

It 1s proposed to adopl new Articles of Association (New Articles) in order to update the Company’s current Artrcles of Association
(Current Articles) prmanly to take account of changes in English company law brought about by the Companes Act 2006 that
fully came mnto force up to and on 1 October 2009, to mcrease the himit on Directors’ fees and to make certain clanfying and
conforming changes

The principal changes introduced in the New Articles are summartsed below Other changes, which are of a munor, technical or
claritying nature and also some more munor changes which merely reflect changes made by the Companies Act 2006 have not
been noted below Generally the opportumty has been taken to bring clearer language into the New Articles and in some areas to
conform the language of the New Articles

The New Articles showng all the changes to the Current Articles are available for inspection at the offices of 1515 EP LLP trom the
date of this notice untii the close of the Annual General Meeting on 14 December 2009 and will also be available for inspection at
the vinue of the Company's Annual General Meeting for at least 15 nmunutes before and durmg the Annual General Medting

1 Articles which duplicate statutory provisions

Provisions i the Current Articles which replicate provisions contained 1n the Companies Act 2006 are tn the main being
amended to bring them mnto line with or to cross refer to the relevant provisions of the Companzes Act 2006 Certain
examples of such provisions include provisions as to the form of reselutions and provisions regarding the period of notice
required to convene general meetings

2 The Company’s objects

The provisions regulatmg the operations of the Company are currently set out i the Current Articles and the Memorandum
ot Assoaiation (“"Memorandum™) The Company’s Memorandum contains the objects clause which sets out the scope of the
activities the Company ts authorised to undertake This clause 1s drafted to give o wide scope

Linder the Companies Act 2006, the objects clause and all other provisions which are currently contained 1n a company's
Memorandum are deemed Lo be contamned i a company’s articles but can be removed by special resolution

The Companies Act 2006 further states that unless a company’s articles provide otherwnse, a company’s objects are
unrestricked This abolishes the need for companies to have obyects clauses For this reason the Company 1s proposing to
remove 1ts ohjects clause, together with all other provisiens of its Memorandum which, by virtue of the Companies Act 2008,
are to be treated as forming part of the Company’s Articles The hnuted habtlity of members wall be preserved m the New
Articles

3 Authorised share capital

The Companies Act 2006 abolishes the requirement tor a company to have an authorised share capital and the Current
Articles arc heing amended to reflect this The Directors will still be hnuted as to the number of shares they can at any time
allot because allotment authonity continues to be required under the Companies Act 2006

4 Redeemable shares

Al present 1f a company wishes Lo 1ssue redeemable shares, 1 must include n its artrcles the terms and manner ot

rademption The Compames Act 2006 enables dircctors to determune such matters instead, provided they are so authorised by
the articles The New Articles will contamn such an authonsation The Company has no plans to 1ssue redeemable shares but if
1t id so the Directors would scek shareholders authority to 1ssue new shares in the usual way

5 Suspension of and reasons for refusal of registration of share transfers

The Current Articles permut the Directors to suspend the registration of transfers Under the Companies Act 2006, share
transfers must be registered as soon as practicable The power 1 the Current Articles to suspend the registration of transfers
15 meonsistent with this requirement and therefore 1s being removed In additton the Current Articles are being updated in line
with the Compantes Act 2006 so that the Drirectors must give reasons for any refusal to register a transfer of shares as soon
as reasonably practicable and Lo provide such further informatton as the transfiree may reasonably request

6 Authority to consolidate and sub-divide shares, purchase own shares and reduce
share capital

Under the Companies Act 1985, a company required spectfic authorsaltons i its arlicles of association to consohdate or sub-
divide tts shares, to purchase 1its own shares and to reduce its share capital Under the Compams Act 2006, public companies
will not requird specific authonsations 1 their articles of assoclation to undertake these actions, but shareholder authornty
will still be requured The New Articles reflect these changes
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Explanatory notes of principal changes to the
Company’s Articles of Association

7

10

1

12

13

Form of resolution

The Current Articles contain a provision that, where for any purpose an ordinary resolution 1s requured, a speaial or
extraordinary resolution is also effective and that, where an extraordinary resolution 1s requirad, a special resolution 1s also
effective This provision 15 being amended as the concept of eatraordinary resolutions has not been retained under the
Companies Act 2006

Notice of annual general meetings and general meetings

The provisions in the Current Articles dealing with the convening of general meetings and the length of notice required to
convene general meelings are being amended to conform to new provisions mn the Comparues Act 2006 Accordingly, a
general meeting to consider a special resolutton can be convened on 14 days’ notice whereas previously 21 days’ nolice was
required However, the LU Shareholder Rights Dircctive implemented in the UK in August 2009 by the Shareholders’ Rights
Regulations increases the nummum notice period for listed company general meetings to 21 days, but with an ablity for
companies to reduce this period back to 14 days (other than for annual general meetings) provided the two conditions
referred to 1n the Directors Report are met As the Board believes that 1t 1s 1n the best interests of shareholders of the
Company to ensure that the mimmum notice perod can remarn at 14 days, the Board intends to seek shareholder approval,
on an annual basis, through the passing of a special resolution at its Annual General Meetings, to permit it Lo convene
general meetings, other than annuat general meetings, on 14 days notice

The Shareholders” Rights Regulations add a provision to the Companies Act 2006 which requires that, when a general
meeting 15 adjourned dun to lack of quorum, the reconvened meeting must be held at least 10 days later The New Articles
include amendments to make them consistent with this new requirement

Amendments to resolutions

The New Articles include a provision allowing members to subnut amendments to proposed ordinary resolutions 48 hours
prior to the meeting at wiich such resolutions are to be considered

Votes of members

Uinder the Companies Act 2006 proxies are entitled to vote on a show of hands whereas under the Current Articles proxies
are only entitled to vole on a poll The trme mits for the appomtment or termunation of a proxy appointment have been
altered by the Companies Act 2006 so thal the articles cannot provide that they should be received more than 48 hours hefore
the meeting or in the case of a poll taken more than 48 hours after the meeting, more than 24 hours betore the time for the
taking of a poll, with wiekends and bank holtdays being permitted lo be exctuded for this purpose Multiple proxtes may be
appointed provided thal each proxy 1s appeinted to exercise the rights attached to a different share held by the shareholder
The New Articles reflect all of these new provisions

Retirement by rotation

The provistons in the Current Articles dealing with the retirement by rotation of directors are being updated, 1n particutar to
bring the New Articles into Iine wath the Combined Code on Corporate Governance

Age of directors on appointment

The Current Articles require special notice be given in connection with the appointment or the approval of the appomntment of
a director who will be, on the date of the meeting, aged 70 or more Such provision has been removed from the New Articles

Limit on fees paid to directors

The New Articles will increase the annual cap on the aggregate fecs payable to directors to £100,000 or such greater figure as
may be fixed by ordinary resolution The humut in the Current Artrcles was fixed 1n 1999 at £50,000 increased annually in
line with tncreases 1a the RPL and the directors now consider 1t appropriate to mcrease the himit so that the Company has
sufficient flexabnlity to attract and retain non executive directors of the necessary cahbre




Explanatory notes of principal changes to the
Company’s Articles of Association

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

Notice of board meetings

Under the Current Articles, when a director 15 abroad he can request that notice of direclors’ meetings are sent lo htm al a
specified address and 1f he does not do so he 15 not entitled to recerve notice while he 1s away This provistion has been
removed, as modern communications mean that there may be no paiticutar obstacle to giving notice to a director who 1s
abroad It has been replaced with a more general provision that a director 1s treated as having warved his entitlement to
notice, unless he supphes the Company with the information necessary to ensure that he receives notice of a meeting before 1t
takes place

Directors’ indemnities and loans to fund expenditure

The Companies Act 2006 has in some areas widened the scope of the powers of a company to indemmfy directors and to
fund expenditure incurred in connection with certain achions against directors The existing exemption allowing a company to
provide money for the purpose of funding a director s defence i court proceedings now eapressly covers regulatory
proceedings and applies to assoctated comparues

Execution of deeds

It 15 now possthle for a company to execute a deed n the presence of a single director, provided a witness attests the signature
and the New Articles reflect this

Validity of proxy rights

Following the implementation of the Shareholders’ Rights Regulations, proxies will be expressly requured to vote 1n accordance
with instructions given to them by members The New Articles contamn a provision stating that the Company 1s not requured

to enquire whether a proxy or corporate representative has voted tn accordance with instructions given to hum and that votes
cast by a proxy or corporate representative will be valid even 1if he has not voted in accordance with hus instructions

Record date for rights to vote at meetings

The New Arlicles tnclude a new provision that, when convening a general meeting the Company may specify a hime, not
more than 48 hours before the time of the meeting (excluding any part of a day that 15 not a working day), by whirh a
person must be entered on the register of members 1n order to have the right to vote at the meeting This new provision 1s 1n
line with a requarement applicable to the Company introduced by the Sharcholders’ Rights Regulattons

Timing for submission of proxy appointments and revocations

The Current Articles will be amended in hine with the Companies Act 2006 te permit the directors to specify, 1t a notice
convening a general meeting, that in determining the tume for delivery of proxy appomtments, no account shall be taken of
non-workimg days Smmuilar amendments will be made in relation to the deadline for subnussion of revocation of proxies This
brings the provisions relating to timing for proxy appormntments and revocations mto line with the new record date for
voting

Removal of chairman’s casting vote

Pursuant to changes brought about by the Shareholders’ Rights Regulations, the company 1s no longer permitted to allow the
chairman to have a casting vote n the evant of an equaltty of votes on an ordinary resolution Accordingly, this provision
has been removed 1n the New Articles

Change of name

Currently, a company can only change i1s name by speaial resolution The Companies Act 2006 additionally allows dircctors
to resolve to change a company’s name, provided they are so authorised by the company's articles The New Articles will grve
the Directors this power

Procedures regarding directors’ resolution in writing

The Current Articles require all directors to sign a written resolution The New Articles will clanfy thatl a written resoluhion
will be vahd if agreed to by all the directors who would have been enlitled to vote {and whose vote would be counted) on that
resolution had 1t been passed at a directors” meeting

Other

Generally the opportunity has been taken to bring clearur language into the New Articles and to update the language used 1n
the Current Articles
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Shareholder Information and Contact Details

Shareholder communication

The Board has a policy of regular and open communication with shareholders based around quarterly statutory reporting

Electromic communication has been introduced following new legislation 1n the 2006 Companies Act and the Baronsmead
VCT 2 wehsite 1s available at www baronsmeadvet2 co uk

Shareholder helpline
Tel 0870 703 0137 (Calls charged at geographic and national rates)

The Shareholder Helpline 15 available on UK business days between Monday and Friday, 8 30 am to 5 pm The helpline
contamns automated self-service functionality which 1s available 24 hours a day, 7 days a week Using your Shareholder
Reference Number which 1s available on your share certificate or dividend tax voucher, our self-service functionality will let

you do the following things

Automated functions

— confirm the latest share price

— confirm your current share holding balance

— confirm payment history

— order a change of address, dividend bank mandate or stock transfer form

e-maill web quenes@@computershare co uk

Enquiries

Shareholders should contact the following regarding queries

Basic contact details, 1e change of address, joiming the DRIP, queries regarding share and tax certificates and bank mandate forms
Computershare {Company Registrar)

www-uk computershare com/investor

[nvestors who hold ordinary shares 1n their own name can chech their holdings on our Registrar’s website
www-uk computershare com Please note that to access thus facihty investors will need to quote the reference number

shown on their share certificate

Alternatively, by registering for the Investors’ Centre facility on Computershare’s website, investors can view details of all
their holdings for which Computershare 1s Registrar, as well as access additronal facihities and documentation Please sce

www investorcentre co uh for further information

For comparative performance data of Baronsmead VCT 2 and other generalist VCTs please visit the AIC performance

staticstics page at www theaic co ub/statistics-publications/

For mformation on assct allocations, dividend policies, mvestment process, DRIP mechanism, share price movements, the share

price discount and selling shares

[SIS EP LLP (the Investment Manager) at www 1s1sep com

e-mal muchael probin@isisep com, paul forster@sisep com, margaret barff@isisep com

Tel Michael Probin 020 7506 5796, Paul Forster 020 7506 5652, Margaret Barff 020 7506 5630

The Baronsmead website (www baronsmeadvcets co uk) links to helpful sites, contains details of the team and some case

studies of investments




Shareholder Information and Contact Details

Share Price

The Company’s ordinary shares are listed on the London Stock Exchange The mud-price of the Company’s ordinary shares
15 given datly 1n the Flaancial Tunes in the Investment Companies section of the London Share Service Share price
information can also be obtained from the link on the company’s website and many financal websites

Trading Shares

The Company’s shares can be bought and sold 1n the same way as any other ¢uoted company on the London Stock
Exchange through a stockbroker

The market makers in the shares of Baronsmead VCT 2 plc are

020 3206 7000

020 3205 7500

020 3100 0251

Matrix Corporate Capital LLP
Singer Caprtal Markets
Winterflood

Breakdown of Shareholdings

The shareholdings of Ordinary Shares as at 30 September 2009 (including shares held 1n Treasury) are analysed as follows

Ordinary Shares

Percentage
of total

Number of aumber of Number of Percentage
Size of shareholding shareholders shareholders shares of shares
1-2,000 223 5 69 318,855 043
2,001-5,000 993 25 34 3,611,073 483
5,001-10,000 989 25 24 7,424,737 994
10,001-25,000 1,018 2598 16,772,637 22 44
25,001-50,000 455 1161 16,269,519 2177
50,001-100,000 174 4 44 1,811,792 15 81
Over 100,000 66 168 18,521,581 24 78
Total 3,918 100 00 74,730,194 100 00

Financial Calendar
14 December 2009
May 2010

November 2010

Iwelfth Annual General Meeting
Announcement and posting of interim report for the six months to 31 March 2010

Announcement and posting of final results for year to 30 September 2010

Additional Information

The information provided n this report has been produced 1n order for shareholders to be informed of the activities of the
Company during the period it covers 1SIS EP LLP does not give investment advice and the namung of companies 1n this

report 15 not a recommendation to deal i them

Baronsmead VCT 2 pic 1s managed by SIS EP LLP which 1s Authonised and regulated by the FSA Past performance 1s not
necessarily a guide to future performance Stockmarkets and currency movements may cause the vaiue of investments and
the mncome from them lo fall as well as rise and investors may not get back the amount they onginally invested Where
mvestments are made m unquolted securities and smaller cormpanies, thenr potential volatilty may increase the rish to the

value of, and the income from, the investment
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Corporate Information

Directors

Chive Anthony Parritt (Chairman)*
Godfrey Frank Jillingst

Gilhan Nott OBE}

Nicholas George Lawrence Timpson¥
Howard Goldring

Secretary
Paul Forster, FCIS

Registered Office
100 Wood Street
London EC2V 7AN

Investment Manager
IS1S EP LLP

100 Wood Street

London EC2V 7AN

Investor Relations
Michael Probin
Tel 020 7506 5796

Registered Number
03504214

*Chairman of the Audit Commattee

tCharman of Nomimation Comuttee

tCharrman ot Management kngagement and Remuneration Comttee
.

“Setor [ndependent Director

Warning to Shareholders

Registrars and Transfer Office
Computershare Investor Services PLC

PO Box 82

The Pavilions

Bridgwater Road

Bristol BS99 622

Tel 08707030137

Brokers

Matrix Corporate Capital LLP
One Vine Street

London W1J 0AM

Auditors

KPMG Audit Plc
Chartered Accountants
Saltire Court

20 Castle Terrace
Edinburgh EH1 2EG

Solicitors
Martineau

No 1 Colmore Square
Birmingham B4 6AA

VCT Status Adviser

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
1 Embankment Place
London WC2N 6RH

Website

www baronsmeadvct2 co uk

Many companies are aware that their sharcholders have recerved unsolicited phone calls or correspondence concerning

investment matters These are typically from overseas based “brokers” who target UK sharcholders offering to seil them

what often turn out to be worthless or high risk shares in US or UK investments They can be very persistent and

extremely persuasive Shareholders are therefore advised to be very wary of any unsolicited advice, offers to buy shares at

a discount or offers for free company reports

Please note that it 1s very unlikely that either the Company or the Company Registrar, Computershare, would make

unsoliciled telephone calls to sharcholders and that any such calls would relate only to official documentation aiready

arrculated to shareholders and never 1n respect of investment “advice”

If you are 1n any doubt about the veracity of an unsohated phone call, please call either the Company or the Registrar at

the numbers provided on page 50



